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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should
be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest
only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean
that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the "GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the
best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
Statement herein or this report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Company Announcements” page of the GEM website at www.hkgem.com for
a minimum period of 7 days from the date of its publication and on the Company’s website at www.cafgroup.hk.
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Financial Summary

BB HE

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-A=+—HLFE

2011 2010 2009
—E——F —E-FTF —EENF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARBTT ARBTT
RESULTS ES
Revenue W 25 45,108 32,923 3,300
Other Income H U A 764 614 2,877
Administrative expenses THAX (10,600) (8,248) (3,064)
Listing expenses EmHZ (8,274) — —
Profit before income tax PR 15 %5 A& A 26,998 25,289 3,113
Income tax expense Frigdif < (9,456) (7,277) (978)
Profit for the year AR E S5 17,542 18,012 2,135
Profit for the year attributable to: JEARARNFE A
Owners of the Company KABEA A 16,174 17,112 1,975
Non-controlling interests FE 470 A% hE 2 1,368 900 160
17,542 18,012 2,135
As at 31 December
BR+=ZB=+—H
2011 2010 2009
—F——F —T-TF ZTTNF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBETFIT ARETF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERAE
Total assets wEE 189,437 168,260 161,913
Total liabilities BHE (136,884) (137,224) (151,585)
Net assets BEFE 52,553 31,036 10,328
Non-controlling interests FE5E R b 2 (6,374) (6,006) (5,106)
Equity attributable to owners RATIER ANELER
of the Company 46,179 25,0380 5,222
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Chairman’s Statement

ETREHE

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present to all our shareholders and the public the annual report of
China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the“Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Our Company was successfully listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 6 January 2012. The successful listing has not only provided us
a platform in the capital markets for our growing business, but also
facilitated us to further strengthen our corporate image in the market.

For the year 2011, we have experienced a volatile but brilliant year.
The global economic environment was gloomy throughout the year.
The government of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
implemented a prudent monetary policy in 2011. Under such a
complicated economic environment, the Group strengthened the risk
control procedures proactively to reduce the business risks. The
implementation of more comprehensive risk control procedures
inevitably slowed down the growth of our business. Nevertheless,
the Group still had a good financial performance during the year.
The revenue for the Group increased by approximately 37.0%, from
approximately RMB32.9 million in 2010 to RMB45.1 million in 2011.
The profit before income tax increased slightly by approximately 6.7%
to approximately RMB27.0 million, from approximately RMB25.3
million in 2010. Excluding the exceptional listing expenses of
approximately RMB8.3 million incurred in 2011, the profit before tax
would have increased to approximately RMB35.3 million, representing
approximately 39.5% increase when compared to 2010.

For the year 2012, we expect uncertainties in the global economy
and the financial market will remain. The sovereign debt risk in the
United States and Europe remains a looming concern over the
development and growth in businesses. The Group remains confident
in the long-term prospect of the guarantee industry despite a
challenging market environment. The Group will continue to
strengthen its quality services in order to offer exceptional value to
our customers and enhance the value to our employees, shareholders
and investors.

Finally, I would like to express my sincere gratitude to the Group’s
Directors, management team and staff members for their dedication
and hard work, our customers for their confidence and support for
our business, and our business partners, investors, shareholders
and professional parties for their trust and support.

Chang Xi Min
Chairman
21 March 2012
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

BRIEF INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing corporate
credit guarantee services, performance guarantee services and the
relevant consultancy services to small and medium enterprises
(*SMEs”) in the PRC.

In respect of corporate credit guarantee services, in principle, the
Group facilitates SMEs by acting as the guarantor for the SMEs to
secure credit facilities from lending banks.

The Group also provides its customers with performance guarantees,
guaranteeing that the customers will perform their contractual
obligations to the counter-parties in relation to, inter alia, delivery of
goods, services contracts and other obligations. Save for the
aforesaid, the Group is also permitted to provide various kinds of
performance guarantees, including without limitation, provision of
contract tendering, bidding guarantee, trade-related guarantees and
litigation bond, which are yet to be provided by the Group.

In addition to the provision of guarantee services, the Group also
provides its customers with consultancy services by entering into a
separate consultancy services agreement with them. The consultancy
services aim to strengthen the customers’ communication with the
lending banks, financial institutions or their counter-parties and
understanding on the recent developments of financing regulations,
and policies and market practices. With the Group’s knowledge of
banks’ credit assessment practice, the Group is able to assist its
customers in improving their financial, accounting and management
systems and presentation.

On 6 January 2012, the Company was successfully listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange, representing a milestone for its shareholders
and staff.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEENWR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

The global economy was volatile in 2011. Confronted by a
complicated and volatile international environment, the PRC
government decisively implemented a pro-active fiscal and prudent
monetary policy, thus continuously strengthening and improving its
control over the macro environment. During the first three quarters
of 2011, the PRC government stepped up measures to suppress
inflation by increasing banks’ reserve requirements and raising
benchmark lending and deposit rates several times, suggesting a
glimmer of chance for individuals and companies to obtain bank
financing for the period. However, there were still many business
owners in the PRC requiring fund to fuel their businesses in the
growing economy. The Group responded to the dual challenges of
national policy adjustments and market changes proactively. Catching
the development opportunities, the Group accelerated its pace in
business expansion and achieved a comprehensive and balanced
development.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the revenue for the Group
was approximately RMB45.1 million (2010: RMB32.9 million),
representing an increase of approximately 37.0%. The detailed
analysis of revenue is as follows:

(i)  Corporate credit guarantee

Revenue from corporate credit guarantee of the Group
represents revenue from the provision of corporate credit
guarantee services and the relevant consultancy services. For
the year ended 31 December 2011, revenue from corporate
credit guarantee of the Group was approximately RMB7.8
million (2010: RMB7.5 million), representing an increase of
approximately 3.5%. For the year 2011, of the RMB7.8 million
of revenue from corporate credit guarantee, approximately
RMB4.6 million of which was from the provision of corporate
credit guarantee services and the remaining of approximately
RMB3.2 million was from the provision of the relevant
consultancy services.
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(if)

For the year 2010, of the RMB7.5 million of revenue from
corporate credit guarantee, approximately RMB3.8 million of
which was from the provision of corporate credit guarantee
services and the remaining of approximately RMB3.7 million
was from the provision of the relevant consultancy services.
Nevertheless, among RMB3.7 million revenue from the provision
of the relevant consultancy services, approximately RMB3.3
million was derived from consultancy services originally provided
together with corporate credit guarantee services. As these
corporate credit guarantee consultancy contracts’
corresponding loan applications were subsequently declined
by the banks in 2010, these consultancy contracts were
recognised on a standalone basis.

The number of new contracts for corporate credit guarantee
entered for the year ended 31 December 2011 were 36 (2010:
24), representing an increase of 50.0% in the number of new
contracts entered. The Group was more familiar with the
guarantee business and expanded its customer portfolio from
time to time, and more new customers were referred to the
Group from existing customers. As a result, more new corporate
credit guarantee contracts were entered into in 2011.

Performance guarantee

Performance guarantee services were introduced in 2010 and
have become the income driver of the Group since then.
Revenue from performance guarantee of the Group represents
revenue from the provision of performance guarantee services
and the relevant consultancy services. For the year ended 31
December 2011, revenue from performance guarantee of the
Group was approximately RMB32.5 million, accounted for
approximately 72.1% of the Group’s total revenue in 2011
(2010: 77.1%). It also represented a growth of approximately
28.0% as compared with the income from performance
guarantee for the year 2010 of approximately RMB25.4 million.
For the year 2011, of the RMB32.5 million of revenue in 2011
from performance guarantee, approximately RMB10.1 million
of which is from the provision of performance guarantee services
and the remaining of approximately RMB22.4 million is from
the provision of the relevant consultancy services.

For the year 2010, of the RMB25.4 million of revenue from
performance guarantee, approximately RMB11.8 million of
which is from the provision of performance guarantee services
and the remaining of approximately RMB13.6 million is from
the provision of the relevant consultancy services.

(ii)
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(iii)

Although there was a decrease in number of new contracts
entered during the year, from 37 new contracts entered in 2010
to 20 new contracts entered in 2011, there was an increase in
the average contract size in 2011. The average contract size
of the performance guarantee contract increased from
approximately RMB4.4 million in 2010 to approximately RMB5.1
million in 2011, which were mainly due to (i) the Group was
more experienced in performance guarantee business; and (i)
the robust economy in the PRC which lead to stronger demand
in commodities.

Standalone advisory services

Standalone advisory services of the Group represent advisory
services offered to customers on a standalone basis without
backed by a guarantee service. The Group’s total standalone
advisory service income for the year ended 31 December 2011
was approximately RMB4.8 million, accounted for
approximately 10.6% of the total revenue of the Group.

There were 4 standalone advisory contracts entered into by
the Group in 2011. The Group’s financial advisory services
provided to its customers, included conducting feasibility
studies, preparing financial proposals and introducing fund
providers to them.

OTHER INCOME

The Group’s other income formed by bank interest. The Group’s
other income for the two years ended 31 December 2010 and 2011
were approximately RMBO0.6 million and RMBO0.8 million respectively.
The increase of approximately 24.4% was mainly attributable to the
increase in the amount of average pledged bank deposits during
the year ended 31 December 2011.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) business tax; (ii) salary
and welfare expenses for management and administrative personnel;
(iii) depreciation and amortisation; (iv) rental expenses; and (v) other
administrative expenses including professional fees. In 2011, the
Group’s administrative expenses amounted to approximately
RMB10.6 million (2010: RMB8.2 million), which accounted for
approximately 23.5% of the Group’s revenue (2010: 25.1%). The
increase in administrative expenses was primarily due to increase in
staff costs and related expenses due to our business growth.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX AND PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The profit before income tax for 2011 increased slightly by
approximately 6.8% to approximately RMB27.0 million, from
approximately RMB25.3 million in 2010. During 2011, the Group
incurred approximately RMB8.3 million expenses in connection with
the listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Excluding the exceptional listing expenses of RMB8.3 million, the
profit before income tax would have increased to approximately
RMB35.3 million, representing an increase of approximately 39.5%
when compared to that of 2010. The profit before income tax margin,
arrived by dividing the profit before income tax excluding the
exceptional listing expenses by total revenue, maintained at a
satisfactory level of 78.2%, a slightly increase from 76.8% in 2010.

The profit attributable to owners of the Company for 2011 was
approximately RMB16.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately 5.5% as compared to approximately RMB17.1 million
for the year ended 31 December 2010. Such decrease was mainly
due to the expenses incurred for listing of the Company’s on GEM
of the Stock Exchange during 2011.
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2011, pledged bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB43.3 million (2010: RMB40.2
million) and RMB3.8 million (2010: RMB24.6 million) respectively,
representing an increase in pledged bank deposits of approximately
RMB3.1 million and a decrease in cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB20.8 million as compared to the position as at
31 December 2010. Despite the Group generated positive cash flows
of approximately RMB11.6 million from operating activities during
the year (2010: RMB39.1 million), the Group made substantial (i)
repayment of approximately RMB17.8 million of shareholder’s loan;
and (i) payment of approximately RMB18.5 million for the
construction of the new head office in Xiamen City.

During the year, the Group did not have any borrowing which bore
floating interest rates. The Group’s interest rate risk primarily relates
to the interest bearing bank balances and pledged bank deposits.
The Group did not hedge its exposure to interest rate during the
year but may enter into interest rate hedging instruments in the future
to hedge any significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The gearing ratio, which was calculated by dividing net debts (i.e.
amounts due to shareholders less pledged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents) by total equity, representing approximately
197.2% as at 31 December 2010 and 116.5% as at 31 December
2011 respectively. The high gearing ratios of the Group for the two
years ended 31 December 2011 were principally due to the then
outstanding amount due to shareholders, which amounted to
approximately RMB126.1 million and RMB108.3 million respectively.
The amount due to shareholders as at 31 December 2011 was fully
capitalised upon listing of the Company on GEM of the Stock
Exchange.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group did not have any material
contingent liability.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

Other than in connection with the Group’s reorganisation for the listing
of the Company on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2012,
there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2011.

OUTLOOK

With the Greece’s debt restructuring and the increase in hiring and
consumer spending in the United States earlier this year have posed
some signs of recovery. Nevertheless, the level of recovery of the
world economy, though optimistic, remains prudent. In March 2011,
the PRC government published its five-year plan (for the years of
2011 to 2015), which proposed to stabilise the country’s annual
growth at about 7% over the next five years. Backed by the cautious
outlook, together with the anticipation of the PRC government to
impose more austerity measures on bank lending in the coming year,
the management takes a cautiously optimistic view on the guarantee
industry.

Banks are expected to be more willing to work with guarantee
companies as they can effectively lower the banks’ risk in providing
financing. On the other hand, with the continuous growth in the PRC
economy whilst banks are more cautious in lending, business
activities amongst SMEs would require further comfort to ensure
the due performance of the counter-parties, which facilitate the
growth of the Group’s guarantee businesses. The Group will continue
monitoring the ongoing market development, expand our existing
services and introduce new products and services at the right time,
and implement appropriate risk control, so as to foster growth and
safeguard our market position.

In order to manage effectively and improve the rapid expanding
business platform of the Group, we plan to recruit more professional
and maintain a strong management team. The Group will continue
to (i) strengthen the Group’s risk management committee; (ii)
strengthen its internal control and post-monitoring procedures to
deal with default risk more effectively and efficiently, including taking
possession of and liquidating collaterals; (iii) standardise the products
and services wherever possible; and (iv) upgrade the Group’s
management information system to improve the effectiveness and
the timeliness of the Group’s overall operations and risk control
measures.
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
Hebei Properties

In September 2010, ;A it KB fTH#EIR B R 2 & (for identification
purpose only, in English, Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Company Limited)
(“Hebei Da Sheng”), a joint venture enterprise established in the
PRC and an indirect 95% owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into two sale and purchase agreements with Hebei New East Asia
Real Estate Development Co. Ltd (At ¥Rz EMAERZEFGR A
A]) (“New East Asia”), a connected person of the Company, to
acquire two properties constructed by New East Asia. The two
properties are situated at: (a) Units 72 and 73, Level 6 of Tower 4;
and (b) Unit 1 on Basement Level 2 of Fortune Centre on No. 3 Shi
Fu Main Street West, Gao Xin District, Zhangjiakou City, Hebei
Province (“Hebei Properties”).

The gross floor area of the Hebei Properties is approximately 5,671
square meters and the total purchase price is approximately
RMB28.8 million. The Group proposed to use the Hebei Properties
as: (a) head office of Hebei Da Sheng; and (b) warehouse storage of
certain valuable collateral assets under counter-guarantee and supply
chain financing in Zhangjiakou, Hebei Province. Completion of the
acquisition of the Hebei Properties is scheduled to take place in or
around June 2012.

Xiamen Property

In October 2009, K&17 (BFY) IR B A 7 (for identification
purpose only, in English, Da Sheng (Xiamen) Guaranty Company
Limited) (“Xiamen Da Sheng”), a joint venture enterprise established
in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a Xiamen State-owned Construction Land Use Right
Transfer Contract with Xiamen Municipal Land, Resources & Housing
Administrative Bureau (B P Bl £ &JRHLFEE & 2 ) and Xiamen
Municipal Land Development Company Limited (& 9 £ b, 5 25 4&
7~ A]) for obtaining a piece of land in Xiamen City at a consideration
of RMB37.7 million (“Xiamen Property”).
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The total site area of the Xiamen Property is approximately 7,699
square meters and a permitted gross floor area is approximately
22,958 square meters. Under the current plan, a commercial building
will be constructed on the land, which is expected to be completed
by August 2012. Upon completion of the construction work, the
Group expects that the commercial building will be solely used as
the head office of Xiamen Da Shang. The Group plans to set up (a) a
nationwide data-base centre; (b) at least one training centre for its
staffs; and (c) seminar centre at the head office. The Directors are of
the view that the acquisition of the above properties is in the interest
of the Group’s future developments.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS AND THEIR EXPECTED SOURCES
OF FUNDING

Save as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Material
Investments” in this report, the Group has no specific future plan for
material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2011.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments represent the Group’s commitment in relation
to its acquisition of the Hebei Properties and Xiamen Property. The
capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2011 not
provided for in the financial statements were approximately RMB1.8
million (2010: RMB1.8 million) for land and buildings, approximately
RMB2.5 million (2010: nil) for leasehold improvement and
approximately RMB31.4 million (2010: 49.6 million) for construction
in progress respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had a total of 28 employees
(2010: 22 employees). The Group’s total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) were approximately RMB2.8 million (2010:
RMB1.7 million). The remuneration policy is determined with reference
to market condition, performance and qualification. During the year,
there was no year-end bonus paid to employees.
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During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Company has not
granted any share options to its employees or Directors under the
share option scheme of the Company adopted on 1 December 2011.

The Group participates in the PRC government-sponsored social
security system as required under the relevant PRC laws and
regulations. The social security system in the PRC includes
retirement, work injury, medical care, unemployment and other
insurance coverage for the employees. The Group also maintains
the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme and insurance for its
employees in Hong Kong.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group’s main operations are in the PRC. Most of the assets,
income, payments and cash balances are denominated in RMB. The
company has not entered into any foreign exchange hedging
arrangement. The Directors consider that exchange rate fluctuation
has no significant impact on the Company’s performance.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Comparison of Business Objectives with Actual Business Progress

15 H

Business objectives for

the period from
the LPD to 30 June 2012

FHERXBERE ZLLE

An analysis comparing the business objectives as stated in the
Prospectus for the period from 20 December 2011, being the latest
practicable date as defined in the Prospectus (the “LPD”) to 30 June
2012 with the Group’s actual business progress for the period from
the LPD to the date of the results announcement of the Company
dared 21 March 2012 (“Announcement”) is set out below:

Actual business
progress up to
the date of the
Announcement

EXPAND THE GROUP’S MARKET PRESENCE IN

HEBEI PROVINCE

Establish cooperation
relationship with
the China Construction
Bank Corporation and
Agricultural Bank
of China Limited

—  Commence business
operation of Changzhou
representative office

—  Negotiate with banks to
increase guarantee limit

—  Conduct seminars to
potential customers
in Hebei

Application in progress
and pending for Agricultural
Bank of China Limited's
approval; and negotiations
are being made with China
Construction Bank Corporation

The Group is applying
for registration certificate
and pending for approval

Zhangjiakou City Commercial
Bank has increased Hebei
Da Sheng’s guarantee limit
from 5 times to 8 times

A seminar of supply chain financing
to banks and potential customers
is expected to be held in May 2012
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FHEMREBEE ZLE

EXPAND THE GROUP’S MARKET PRESENCE IN
XIAMEN CITY AND OTHER CITIES
SURROUNDING XIAMEN

—  Establish cooperation -
relationship with the
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd.,
Longhai Zhangzhou
Commercial Bank
and Ping An Bank

Applications in progress
and pending for Industrial
Bank Co., Ltd. and Ping An Bank’s
approval; and negotiation with
Longhai Zhangzhou Commercial
Bank in connection with
cooperation will postpone to
the second half year of 2012

—  Conduct seminars to potential ~ —
customers in Xiamen

A seminar of supply chain financing
to banks and potential customers
is scheduled to be held in
April 2012

EXPAND THE SCOPE OF THE GROUP’S
EXISTING BUSINESS AND SERVICES

—  Commence guarantee services —
for supply chain financing in
Hebei Province and/
or Xiamen City

Hebei Da Sheng has commenced
the provision of guarantee
services for supply chain
financing in Hebei

RECRUIT ADDITIONAL EXPERTISE AND
ALLOCATE MORE RESOURCES TO IMPROVE
CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

—  Recruit more staff with high -
qualification

The Group is in the progress
of recruiting more experienced
and high caliber personnels

- Build internal nationwide -
database

The database is expected to be
launched after the completion
of the Group’s new office
buildings in Hebei in or before
June 2012

—  Provide regular training -
courses to staff arranged
by reputable universities

Certain staff is attending training
courses organized by reputable
universities
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSREEAEBRERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, aged 33, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company on 1
December 2011. Mr. Chang is one of the founders of the Group. He
is responsible for the operation and management of the Group. Mr.
Chang obtained a bachelor degree in business management from
the University of New Brunswick of Canada in September 2000. He
has over 7 years of experience in property development before he
set up the Group with Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, an executive Director
and vice chairman of the Company. Mr. Chang joined his family
business in 2000, served as the general manager of & P9 i & b
E X |] (Xiamen Xiaoxiang Real Estate Limited, being its unofficial
English translation) and the directors of A/ db ¥T SR 25 F # E FE B
R A A] (Hebei New East Asia Real Estate Development Company
Limited, being its unofficial English translation) and Hebei Da Sheng,
an indirect subsidiary of the Company. He is also the vice chairman
of IRR AT L %A € (Zhangjiakou City Chamber of Commerce,
being its unofficial English translation), chairman of 38 5 O 71 R M 75
@ (Quanzhou City Chamber of Commerce of Zhangjiakou, being its
unofficial English translation), committee member of 5k R O 1 & F
4 @ (Zhangjiakou City Youth Federation, being its unofficial English
translation) and a member of the board of supervisors of Zhangjiakou
City Commercial Bank Co., Limited. Mr. Chang is the son of Mr.
Chang Xi Min, a non-executive Director and the chairman of the
Company.

Mr. Pang Man Kin, Nixon, aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director on 10 March 2011. Mr. Pang is one of the founders of the
Group and is currently the vice chairman of the Company. He is
responsible for overall strategy formulation and planning of the Group.
From August 2005 to July 2007, Mr. Pang was a former executive
director of Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (then
known as Aurora Global Investment Holdings Limited, stock code:
353) and had participated in various mergers and acquisitions and
company restructuring.
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Mr. Chen Xiao Li, aged 41, was appointed as an executive Director
on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chen is the compliance officer of the Group
and is responsible for the compliance issue and overseeing the
internal control of the Group. He is also a member of the credit
management standing committee of the Group. Mr. Chen obtained
a bachelor degree in laws from Hebei University in December 1998
and a master degree in laws from Tsinghua University in January
2005. He is a practising lawyer in the PRC. Mr. Chen has been
providing legal services to the Group since 2006.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chang Xi Min, aged 64, was appointed as a non-executive
Director and the chairman of the Company on 1 December 2011.
Mr. Chang was the editor of Xiamen Daily from 1983 to 1989, during
which he studied at The Open University of China (formerly known
as “China Central Radio and TV University”) and graduated in
September 1988. He was the economic consultant of Zhangjiakou
Municipal Government, the secretary general of Xiamen General
Chamber of Commerce, a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Hebei Province Committee of the PRC
and a general member of Zhangjiakou Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. From 1997 to
2003, Mr. Chang was appointed as the executive director of Madex
International (Holdings) Limited (during the relevant period known
as Fairyoung Holdings Limited, stock code: 231). Since 2001, he
has been the chairman of Liaohai International Investment Limited.
Mr. Chang is the father of Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, an executive Director
and chief executive officer of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kai Wing, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chan is currently
the managing director and founder of Mandarin Capital Enterprise
Limited, a company specialised in financial advisory, merger and
acquisition and fund raising for both listed and private companies in
Hong Kong and the PRC. He founded Mandarin Capital Enterprise
Limited in 2004 and since then, he has provided financial advisory
services to a wide range of industries, such as real estate
development industry and dairy industry. Mr. Chan obtained a
bachelor degree of economics from Macquarie University in Sydney,
Australia in April 1986 and is an associate member of Australia
Society of CPAs. Mr. Chan worked in the audit department of Ernst
& Young in Hong Kong and worked as the financial controller of
Shenzhen China Bicycle Company (Holdings) Limited, a listed
company in the PRC, from 1988 to 1991 and 1991 to 1999
respectively.

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung, aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 1 December 2011. Mr. Lam
graduated from Victoria University, Australia in July 1991 with a
bachelor degree in banking and finance. He also obtained a master
degree in applied finance from Macquarie University, Australia. Mr.
Lam is currently a deputy chief executive officer of China Eco-Farming
Limited (Stock code: 8166) and an independent non-executive
director of Chinese Food and Beverage Group Limited (stock code:
8272). He was an independent non-executive director of (i) China
Bio-Med Regeneration Technology Limited (stock code: 8158) from
June 2008 to September 2009; (ii) China Railway Logistics Limited
(stock code: 8089) from December 2008 to June 2009; and (jii) China
Oriental Culture Group Limited (stock code: 2371) from January 2008
to September 2010.
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Mr. Chow Shiu Ki, aged 44, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 1 December 2011. Mr. Chow is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He also holds a master degree in professional accounting awarded
by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in October 2009. Mr. Chow
is currently a chief financial officer of Chinese Food and Beverage
Group Limited (stock code: 8272) and an independent non-executive
director of DINGYI GROUP INVESTMENT LIMITED (during the
relevant period known as Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited, stock
code: 508). He was an independent non-executive director of China
Oriental Culture Group Limited (stock code: 2371) from January 2008
to May 2011 and Pan Asia Mining Limited (stock code: 8173) from
November 2006 to August 2008.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Bai Xiang, aged 66, joined the Group in November 2009 and
is currently the chief risk control officer of the Group, responsible for
new guarantee product development and business expansion
strategy formulation. Mr. Li graduated from the radio and automatic
control system faculty of Huanan Polytechnic majoring in water
acoustics engineering in July 1969. He was a lecturer for electronic
technologies and general manager of China Shipping Services
Corporation. From 1990 to 2005, Mr. Li was the general manager of
China National Materials Storage and Transportation Guangzhou
Corp, a subsidiary of a state-owned enterprise which is engaged in
securitisation management of pledged assets for various financial
institutions in the PRC since 1999. During the period, he conducted
extensive researches on and has gained extensive experience in: (a)
logistics management and project guarantee businesses; and (b)
securitisation of relevant assets along the chain of logistics
management for financial investments.

Furthermore, Mr. Li has been conducting researches on mixed
application of “supply chain” and “capital chain application”. During
the period, he also published various academic articles relating to
“logistics bank and risk management”. In 2007, Mr. Li, being a senior
economist, was invited by #3E ¥ & it 18 $ i it 98 FT (Hubei Research
Institute for Logistics Technology, being its unofficial English
translation) as one of the member of the expert team in reviewing
the ¥37% & = 788138 Bl (General Specification for Logistics Quantitative
Forecast, being its unofficial English translation).

Mr. Li is currently a consultant of the 57 B %77 4 2 /7 {& #E # 2, (China
Logistics Productivity Promotion Centre, being its unofficial English
translation).
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Mr. He Jian Han, aged 34, joined the Group in April 2011 and is
currently a manager responsible for risk control of the Group and a
member in the risk control committee. Mr. He worked in Xiamen
branch of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China. Mr. He
graduated from Xiamen University with a master degree in business
administration in 2010.

Mr. An Xiaochun, aged 46, joined the Group in September 2006
and is currently the chief business supervisor in Hebei Da Sheng, an
indirect subsidiary of the Company. Mr. An is responsible for market
development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects. He
graduated from Hebei Radio and TV University with a diploma in
financial accounting in July 1988 and Central Party School of the
Communist Party of China in December 1992 majoring in
management in party administration. Mr. An completed and passed
an advanced-level course in risk investment and corporate finance
organised by the Continuing Education Department of Tsinghua
University in March 2011.

Mr. Chen Yi Ping, aged 49, joined the Group in November 2009.
Mr. Chen is currently the chief business supervisor of Xiamen Da
Sheng, an indirect subsidiary of the Company. He is responsible for
market development, sales and preliminary approval of new projects.
Mr. Chen obtained his diploma in economic from Xiamen University
in June 1984.

Mr. Xu Gao Sen, aged 34, joined the Group in November 2009 and
is currently the chief financial controller of the Group. Mr. Xu obtained
a graduation certificate in construction finance accounting from &
EEE S S HERER (Fujian Construction Vocational School, being
its unofficial English translation) in July 1998. Before joining the Group,
he worked as the accounts manager of a property developer in
Xiamen City for 5 years.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 32, joined the Group in July 2008. Mr. Zhang
is currently the marketing manager of the Group. He is responsible
for marketing affairs of the Group. Mr. Zhang has more than two
years experience in marketing area. He obtained a diploma in
construction engineering and pricing management in January 2008
from Hebei Institute of Architecture Civil Engineering and joined the
Group after his graduation.
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The Directors are pleased to present their first report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011. The Company was listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 6
January 2012 (the “Listing Date”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of providing corporate
credit guarantee services, performance guarantee services and the
relevant consultancy services to small and medium enterprises in
the PRC. Details of the principal activities and other particulars of
the Company'’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year and the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 48 to 120.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year. (2010: Nil).

REORGANISATION AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability on 10 March 2011. After the reorganisation to rationalise the
structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company became the
holding company of the Group. On 6 January 2012, the shares of
the Company have been listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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As part of the preparation for the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company issued 150,000,000 new
shares and alloted 235,000,000 existing shares being offered for
sale by way of placing (the “Placing”), a capitalization issue of
1,389,980,000 shares and a loan capitalisation issue of 10,000
shares. All such shares issued were ordinary shares and the
150,000,000 new shares were issued at par value of HK$0.01 each.
The net proceeds received by the Company from the issuance of
new shares under the Placing were approximately HK$25.7 million
(approximately RMB21 million). As disclosed in the Company’s
prospectus dated 29 December 2011 (the “Prospectus”), the
Directors intended to use all net proceeds from the Placing received
by the Company for payment of the capital commitments of the Group
which fall due in or around December 2012 in relation to the purchase
of properties and construction of its office buildings in Hebei and
Xiamen. Details of the plan for the use of proceeds from the Placing
are set out in the section headed “Reasons for the Placing and Use
of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Hence, as at the date of this report,
the net proceeds have not yet been used and were placed at short-
term interest-bearing deposit accounts with financial institutions in
the PRC. The capital commitments of the Group in relation to the
purchase of properties and construction of the Hebei Properties and
Xiamen Property in aggregate amounted to approximately RMB35.6
million as at 31 December 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements in this report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively in this report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2011, the Company'’s reserves available for
distribution to the shareholders amounted to approximately RMB43.1
million.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements in this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last three financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements and
the Prospectus, is set out on pages 6 to 7. This summary does not
form part of the audited financial statements in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
SECURITIES

The issued shares of the Company were listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 6 January 2012. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities after listing.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year, the Group’s major customers are set out below:
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Sales $HE
— the largest customer — BRAEP 7.87
— the five largest customers — EREPE&H#
combined 36.66
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None of the Directors, their associates (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
had any interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company since the Listing Date and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam
(Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon
(Vice Chairman)

Mr. Chen Xiao Li

(appointed on 1 December 2011)
(appointed on 10 March 2011)

(appointed on 1 December 2011)

Non-Executive Director:

Mr. Chang Xi Min
(Chairman)

(appointed on 1 December 2011)

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Wing (appointed on 1 December 2011)

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung (appointed on 1 December 2011)

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki (appointed on 1 December 2011)

In accordance with articles 83(2) to 84(1) of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon and
Mr. Chan Kai Wing will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(the “AGM”).

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each
of its independent non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence in accordance with the relevant requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules and all independent non-executive Directors are
still being considered to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 21 to 25 of this report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a period of three years commencing from 1
December 2011 and will continue thereafter until terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contract. Each of the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into a letter of appointment with the Company on 1 December
2011. The letter of appointment is for an initial term commencing on
the date of the letter of appointment and ending on 30 November
2012, and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum of three
years unless terminated by either party giving at least one month’s
notice in writing. All the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings of the Company
pursuant to its articles of association.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the sub-paragraph headed “Hebei
Properties” under the paragraph headed the “Material Investments”
under the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section in this
report, none of the Director had a significant beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The
Directors may also received options to be granted under a share
option scheme. The Company has conditionally adopted a share
option scheme. The details of the share option scheme are set out
in the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

30

EENSREEABZER

AEBEZNSREIEAB ZFMBFEEN
KRG FE21E258

EERBEN

BERTEFEARAFLRBAL - FHA
“E—F+-R-REBHRYP=F W
BEHBRRBIREAHZGEREILER/ILE - &
FRTESRBULIFRTESTAR T ——
FH-A—BEARRRITRER - ZEK
ZEHER R ERZ BRERE—F——
F+—A=tHER  HERENHRER=
FoEEP—FAE R —(EAERER
BAIMA L - 2R ERHARBEMKSEA
AR ESRMNARRRRAFKE LEE
HIE -

MEANEERRBFAE LEREIZE
FEREARRAFRITANRBA TR —FAR
1ERE1E OEERRERRIN MR L ZIRIEEH) -

EENEHNzER

BRARE [EEENwmENIT] —fi[EAR
Bl —BPDIEMEIDBAEEEN  #
BEENARASHETFANERRREANF
MM AEENEBERN ZEFMEHTERE
HEEEEEAE MM -

N BUR

FMEZE SO KK - UEHMIRRERE
B I BRAXEEZKRMASEZ
RABEEE2ME MAHERS - EFENA
IRIBFE AR T 8 WS TR 2 B -
NAE A R RME AT 8 - BAERT 2
ISR P[RR R &) — B -



MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2011, the shares of the Company were not listed
on the Stock Exchange. The respective Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), Section 352 of
the SFO and Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules were not
applicable.

As of the date of this report, interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) held by the Directors and chief executives of the Company
which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or have been entered in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:
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(a) Long position in ordinary shares of HK$0.01
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each and underlying shares

(@) REREEH.OIET 2E
BERREERGZHR

Approximate
percentage of

issued

share capital

(Note2)

Name of Nature of Number of HERTRAE

Directors interests shares held ZBABE DL

EEpns EEME R0 8 E (Ft3E2)

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 66.54

(“Mr. Chang”) (Note1) corporation

sRELE A ([REE]D) (M) XEHUEZERRD

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 66.54

(“Mr. Pang”) (Note1)
TXEREE([EE]) (1)

corporation
RE SRS

Notes:

1,024,716,000 shares are registered in the name of Team King
Limited, which is legally and beneficially owned by Capital Gain
Investments Holdings Limited (“Capital Gain”) and Best Access
Holdings Group Limited (“Best Access”). Capital Gain is legally
and beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by Mr.
Chang. Under the SFO, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang are deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Team King Limited by virtue of Team
King Limited being controlled by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang through
Capital Gain.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,540,000,000 shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this report.
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(b) Long position in the shares of associated
corporation
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held interest in
Name of in associated associated
Name of associated Nature of corporation corporation
Directors corporation interests FriFBeENT HHEATESR
EEpns BENRERW EEME R A ZEHNBED
Mr. Chang Team King Limited (Note) Through a controlled 9,269 92.69
R A B R A E () corporation
REHEE R
Mr. Pang Team King Limited (Note) Through a controlled 9,269 92.69
e NEER A (15 corporation
XA E R
Note: MIeE -
Team King Limited is legally and beneficially owned as to 92.69% by Capital ANEBB R AT A E K Best Accessa ik

Gain and as to 7.31% by Best Access. Capital Gain is legally and
beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by Mr. Chang.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he
was taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which was required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.
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INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO AND
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2011, the shares of the Company were not listed
on the Stock Exchange. So far as the Directors are aware, as at the
date of this report, other than the Directors and chief executive of
the Company, the following persons/entities have an interest or a
short position in the shares or the underlying shares which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which would be recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO, or who will be, directly or indirectly, to be interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the Company
or any other members of the Group:

BEEZ KRB EKRHNETH
BeRaRFERR

RZFE——F+=-_A=+—H " A278KH
MARPEEARZFT LT o IREFA - RS
HE - RESFERARRITHABSN  THIA
T/ EBRBRMDIAEERODESREES K
HAE 1§ HI EEXVERE2 3D 2P 2 MM E AR AR
AR EE - SIRIEFE 5 R HAE R 55 3366 47
EELSRIRREAM - EEEEREARA
AR BITRAFHAWF AT N AR R HAE
BEERKERARIZRREAG EREZEMLR
RIS E 5% A E#E s -

Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s

issued

share capital

(Note 3)

Number of o NN

Nature of ordinary 2RITRA

Name interests shares held ZBABEDL

=x EEME HESEROHE (Ft3E3)

Team King Limited Beneficial owner 1,024,716,000 66.54

BB R A A EnEBA

Capital Gain Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 66.54
= corporation (Note 1)
REGEE R (BtsE1)

Best Access Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 66.54
corporation (Note 1)
SR EE R (1)

Dr. Ma Chung Wo Cameron (“Dr. Ma”) Through a controlled 1,024,716,000 66.54
FHRMEL ([FEE]) corporation (Note 1)
SR A E R (31

Joyful Promote Limited Beneficial owner 130,284,000 8.46

EEHRAT B A A

Mr. So Chi Ming (“Mr. So”) Through a controlled 130,284,000 8.46
BREBREA ([EREE]D) corporation (Note 2)
REHEE S (Ft3E2)
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Notes:

1. These shares are registered in the name of Team King Limited, which is
legally and beneficially owned by Capital Gain and Best Access. Capital
Gain is legally and beneficially owned as to 51% by Mr. Pang and 49% by
Mr. Chang. Best Access is legally and beneficially owned by Dr. Ma. Under
the SFO, Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang are deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Team King Limited by virtue of Team King Limited being
controlled by Mr. Pang and Mr. Chang through Capital Gain. Dr. Ma is
deemed to be interested in the shares held by Team King Limited by virtue
of Team King Limited being controlled by Dr. Ma through Best Access.

2. These shares are registered in the name of Joyful Promote Limited, the
entire issued shares of which is legally and beneficially owned by Mr. So.
Under the SFO, Mr. So is deemed to be interest in the shares held by
Joyful Promote Limited.

3. The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,540,000,000 shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, according to
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO, there was no person who had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 or Part XV of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted
to any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme enables the Company to grant options to
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) as incentives or rewards
for their contributions to the Group, the Company conditionally
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 1 December
2011 whereby the Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion
and subject to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe
for the shares of the Company to the Eligible Participant. The Scheme
will be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the Listing Date.
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As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 154,000,000 shares, representing 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for shares granted
pursuant to the Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible Participant shall
pay HK$ 1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.
The Option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days
from the date on which the Option is granted. The subscription price
for the shares subject to Options will be a price determined by the
Board and notified to each participant and shall be the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the Options, which
must be a day on which trading of shares take place on the Stock
Exchange (the “Trading Day”); (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the 5 Trading Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the
Options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share. For the purpose of
calculating the subscription price, in the event that on the date of
grant, the Company has been listed on the Stock Exchange for less
than 5 Trading Days, the placing price shall be used as the closing
price for any Trading Day falling within the period before the Listing
Date.

The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue from the Listing Date. The Company may at any
time refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and
issue of a circular in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided
that the total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under all
the share option schemes of the Company does not exceed 30% of
the shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during a period
as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

As at the date of this report and since the adoption of the Scheme,
no share option has been granted by the Company.
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CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions for the year are set out in
note 28 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EXEMPTED CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Prior to the Listing Date, the Group has entered into the following
transactions with the following parties, which will be connected
persons of the Company upon the listing. All of these transactions
will continue after the listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of the
Stock Exchange and constitute continuing connected transactions
which are exempt from the reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20
of the GEM Listing Rules.

Tenancy agreements

Hebei office

On 22 December 2011, Hebei Da Sheng as tenant and New East
Asia as landlord entered into a tenancy agreement in respect of a
property (the “Hebei Property”) situated at Level 14, Liaohai
International Building, Shi Ji Hao Yuan, No. 6 Weisan Road,
Zhangjiakou, Hebei, the PRC with an area of approximately 170 sq.
m. for a term of six months commenced on 22 December 2011 and
expiring on 21 June 2012. The total rental and management fees
payable by the Group for the Hebei Property is approximately
RMB 34,560. The Hebei Property is currently being used by the Group
as its Hebei office.

As Mr. Chang Xi Min and Mr. Chang, directly or indirectly, own 7.5%
and 54.5% equity interests in New East Asia respectively, New East
Asia is thus regarded as a connected person of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules.

Given that the rental payable by the Group in respect of the Hebei
Property is comparable and in line with prevailing market rates, the
Group will continue to lease the Hebei Property from New East Asia
until completion of construction of its Hebei headquarters.
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Xiamen office

On 2 August 2009, Xiamen Da Sheng as tenant and Ms. Ma Lee
Kwan as landlord entered into a tenancy agreement in respect of a
property (the “Xiamen Property”) situated at Suites 23B and 23C,
Office Tower, Zhongxin Huiyang Building, No. 59 Hubing Road North,
Xiamen, the PRC with an area of approximately 200 sqg. m. for a
term of three years commenced on 8 September 2009 and expiring
on 7 September 2012. The annual rental payable by the Group for
the Xiamen Property is approximately RMB84,000. The Xiamen
Property is currently being used by the Group as its Xiamen office.

As Ms. Ma Lee Kwan is the mother of Mr. Chang and the wife of Mr.
Chang Xi Min, she is a connected person of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules.

Given that the rental payable by the Group in respect of the Xiamen
Property is comparable and in line with prevailing market rates, the
Group will continue to lease the Xiamen Property from Ms. Ma Lee
Kwan until completion of construction of its Xiamen headquarters.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, substantial shareholders of the Company nor
any of their respective associates is a director or a shareholder of
any business apart from the business of the Group which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Kingston Corporate Finance Limited to be
the compliance adviser. Kingston Corporate Finance Limited, being
the sponsor, has declared its independence pursuant to Rule 6A.07
of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as provided for under the underwriting
agreement relating to the placing, neither Kingston Corporate Finance
Limited nor any of its associates and none of the directors or
employees of Kingston Corporate Finance Limited who have been
involved in providing advice to the Company as the sponsor, has or
may, as a result of the placing, have any interest in any securities of
the Company or any other companies of the Group (including options
or rights to subscribe for such securities).
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The compliance adviser’s appointment is for a period commencing
on the Listing Date and ending on the date on which the Company
complies with Rule 18.03 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of its
financial results for the second full financial year commencing after
the Listing Date, i.e. 31 December 2014, or until the agreement is
terminated, whichever is earlier.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with Rule 18.08B of the GEM Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of events after the reporting period are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 40
to 45 in this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 have been audited by the Company’s auditor,
BDO Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
AGM.

By order of the Board
China Assurance Finance Group Limited
Pang Man Kin Nixon
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 21 March 2012
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Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the Board is
pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and
enhance its corporate value. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provisions as set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”)
in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

Throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
the Company had complied with the code provisions in the CG Code.

THE BOARD AND THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

The Company is governed by the Board, which is responsible for
overseeing the overall strategy and development of the Company,
as well as monitoring the internal control policies and evaluating the
financial performance of the Group. The Board sets the overall
strategies and directions for the Group with a view to developing its
business and enhancing the shareholders value.

The Board currently comprises seven directors and their respective
roles are set out as follows:
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam Executive Director

and Chief Executive Officer
Executive Director

and Vice Chairman
Executive Director
Non-executive Director

and Chairman of the Board
Independent non-executive

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon

Mr. Chen Xiao Li
Mr. Chang Xi Min

Mr. Chan Kai Wing

Director

Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung Independent non-executive
Director

Mr. Chow Shiu Ki Independent non-executive
Director

The roles of the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
of the Company are segregated.
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The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out
under the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” in this report. Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company, is the son of
Mr. Chang Xi Min, a non-executive Director and the chairman of the
Board. Save for the aforesaid, none of the members of the Board is
related to one another.

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed sufficient number of independent non-
executive Directors (the “INEDs”) with at least one of them having
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The INEDs, together with the
executive Directors, ensure that the Board prepares its financial and
other mandatory reports in strict compliance with the relevant
standards. The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the INEDs and believes that their
independence is in compliance the GEM Listing Rules.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a period of three years commencing from
1 December 2011 and will continue thereafter until terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contract. Each of the non-
executive Director and the INEDs have entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company on 1 December 2011. The letter of
appointment for each of the non-executive Director and the INEDs
is for an initial term of one year, and shall continue thereafter subject
to a maximum of three years unless terminated by either party giving
at least one month’s notice in writing.

In accordance with the articles of association, one-third of the
Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number is
not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third shall retire from the office and being eligible offer
themselves for re-election provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The
Directors to be retired by rotation shall be those who have been
longest in office since their last appointment or re-appointment.

Owing to the fact that the Company was listed after the reporting
period, only 1 Board meeting was held on 1 December 2011, even
prior to the Company becoming a listed company. The Board has
delegated certain duties and authorities to the management for the
day-to-day management of the Group’s operation.
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N\ = 3N
TEER/RRE
Number of
Board meetings
attended/eligible
to attend
Directors BHEEEREE
B ZEEESREE
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Chang Hoi Nam RS L E 1/1
Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon TNBEE 1/1
Mr. Chen Xiao Li BR/NFI 5 A 1/1
Non-executive Director FHITESE
Mr. Chang Xi Min RS EAE 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFBITEE
Mr. Chan Kai Wing iR 4 5 o A 1/1
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung S S= e 1/1
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki BERELE 1/1

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The
Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, all the Directors have complied with the Required Standard
of Dealings throughout the period from the Listing Date to the date
of this report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee on 1 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
B.1.1 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules. The remuneration committee comprises one executive Director
and two INEDs, namely Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon, Mr. Chan Kai Wing
and Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung. The committee is chaired by
Mr. Chan Kai Wing.

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the
Group; review performance based remuneration; and ensure none
of the Directors determine their own remuneration.
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Owing to the fact that the Company was listed after the reporting
period, no remuneration committee meeting was held during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

Directors are also the eligible participants under the Scheme as
disclosed in the Report of the Directors in this report. Details of
remuneration of the Directors for the year were disclosed in note 10
to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee on 1 December
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with paragraph
A.4.5 of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules. The nomination committee comprises one executive Director
and two INEDs, namely Mr. Chang Hoi Nam, Mr. Chan Kai Wing and
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung. The committee is chaired by Mr.
Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung.

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board on regular basis; identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; access the
independence of INEDs; and make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of Directors.

Owing to the fact that the Company was listed after the reporting
period, no nomination committee meeting was held during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 1 December 2011
with written terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and
5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules and paragraph C.3.3 of the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The audit
committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Chan Kai Wing, Mr.
Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung and Mr. Chow Shiu Ki. The committee
is chaired by Mr. Chan Kai Wing. The audited annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 have been reviewed
by the audit committee members who have provided advice and
comments thereon.
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The primary duties of the audit committee are mainly to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of external auditor as well as approval on their
remuneration and terms of engagement; review the financial
statements and material advice in respect of financial reporting; and
oversee financial reporting system and internal control procedures
of the Company.

Owing to the fact that the Company was listed after the reporting
period, no audit committee meeting was held during the year ended
31 December 2011.

DIRECTORS’ ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group. The Directors are not aware of
any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

AUDITOR AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the Company’s financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011 is set out in the section “Independent
Auditor’'s Report” of this report.

During the year, remuneration paid and payable to the auditor of the
Group are approximately HK$860,000 for audit services and
HK$1,880,000 for non-audit services respectively.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control system in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders
and the assets of the Company against unauthorized use or
disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for
the provision of reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance
with the relevant rules and regulations.
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The audit committee reviewed the overall effectiveness of the internal
control system and reported its findings and made recommendations
to the Board. The Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system for the year ended
31 December 2011. The Board will continue to assess the
effectiveness of internal controls by considering reviews performed
by the audit committee and executive management.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes that maintaining a high level of transparency
is a key to enhance investor relations. It is committed to a policy of
open and timely disclosure of corporate information to its
shareholders and investment public.

The Company updates its shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports. The corporate website of the Company
(www.cafgroup.hk) has provided an effective communication platform
to the public and the shareholders.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288

Fax: +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
A

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
TEEE : +8522218 8288 EATHEEP1115E
{8H : +8522815 2239 JKLH>254&

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of China Assurance Finance Group Limited
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 48 to 120,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31 December 2011 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Joanne Y.M. Hung
Practising Certificate Number P05419
Hong Kong, 21 March 2012
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For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=t+-ALTE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR TR ARBTT
Revenue W &= 8 45,108 32,923
Other income H b g A 8 764 614
Administrative expenses THHAX (10,600) (8,248)
Listing expenses EHAX (8,274) —
Profit before income tax FTS % A & 7l 9 26,998 25,289
Income tax expense Frigdif < 11 (9,456) (7,277)
Profit for the year NEE @ 17,542 18,012
Other comprehensive income Hip2mEUas
Exchange gain on translation of HIFIME & %
financial statements of Tk 2 T A
foreign operations 4,975 2,696
Total comprehensive income for the year ZN4F € & Ui 25 42 58 22,517 20,708
Profit for the year attributable to: JEMRARFEE &
Owners of the Company ZIN/NSIEZ PN 16,174 17,112
Non-controlling interests FEFEAR E 2R 1,368 900
17,542 18,012
Total comprehensive income JEih2mE =B
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIE7F =N 21,149 19,808
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR HE 2= 1,368 900
22,517 20,708
Earnings per share — Basic BRREN — EAR
(RMB cents) (ARE®D) 13 1.16 1.23
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
SN s >
e AR R
At at 31 December 2011
WZZE——%+Z-A=+—H
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 7 AR¥E T AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment YE - BB K& 14 44,743 26,291
Land use rights & b A 15 36,035 36,789
Deposits paid [=ENE& 17 27,816 27,018
108,594 90,098
Current assets REBEE
Account receivables JrE UK BR 3R 18 22,804 9,554
Prepayments and deposits paid BENFEREMNES 3,671 3,760
Pledged bank deposits EEMRITIER 19 43,300 40,221
Restricted bank deposits SR HIRITIE 20 7,300 —
Cash and cash equivalents BeMRE&EEAE 21 3,768 24,627
80,843 78,162
Current liabilities REaE
Accruals, other payables FEETER - EMpER
and deferred income FRIB AR FEY A 22 16,857 4,044
Amounts due to shareholders JiE A~F % 3R FR T8 23 108,300 126,063
Current tax liabilities BIHfiIEE & 11,727 6,367
136,884 136,474
Net current liabilities RBEEFE (56,041) (58,312)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZABRAREBEE 52,553 31,786
Non-current liabilities ERBEAE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIEGAE 24 — 750
Net assets EERE 52,553 31,036
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners AATEEAELESR
of the Company
Share capital [N 25 - —
Reserves i 26(a) 46,179 25,030
46,179 25,030
Non-controlling interests R ER 6,374 6,006
Total equity FERBEE 52,553 31,036

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam GRS\ 5t 4)
Director (£ %)

Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (¥ X B % 4)

Director (£%)
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B AR 2R

At at 31 December 2011
RZE——F+ZA=+—H

2011
—E——F
Notes RMB’000
B 2 ARE TR
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITERARIEE 16 51,110
Current assets RBEE
Prepayment A R IE 744
Current liabilities RBEE
Accruals and other payables FEFT B R R H M FER I 3,540
Amount due to a subsidiary FETHT B & B3R 16 5,258
8,798
Net current liabilities RBEEEE (8,054)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAEBERABEEREEEE
and net assets 43,056
EQUITY s
Share capital &N 25 -
Reserves i 26(b) 43,056
Total equity S 43,056

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Mr. Chang Hoi Nam GRS\EE 5t 4)
Director (£%)
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2011

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

HE - T——F+_A=t+—HBILEE
Non-controlling
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests  Total equity
FRAEEARELER FERER ERAE
Share Exchange Retained
capital reserve profits Total
TN ERfE REEA &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR  ARET:
At 1 January 2010 RZE-2%-f—H - 2,868 2,354 5,222 5,106 10,328
Profit for the year REERA - - 17,112 17,112 900 18,012
Other comprehensive income ~ AF & Efb 2 E M
for the year - 2,696 - 2,696 - 2,696
Total comprehensive AEE2ANRAE
income for the year - 2,696 17,112 19,808 900 20,708
At 31 December 2010 RZIZ-FF
and 1 January 2011 TZA=+-Ak - 5,564 19,466 25,030 6,006 31,036
—T-——%-A-H
Dividend paid to non-controlling 171 M B2 1,2 FEE Rk
interests of a subsidiary Eaxiizie
— Transactions with owners ~ — A }\iﬁﬂzi% - - - - (1,000) (1,000)
Profit for the year KEEGRH - - 16,174 16,174 1,368 17,542
Other comprehensive income & E b2 E M
for the year - 4,975 - 4,975 - 4,975
Total comprehensive income  AEE2HARFLE
for the year - 4,975 16,174 21,149 1,368 22,517
At 31 December 2011 R=%--%
+ZA=1-H - 10,539 35,640 46,179 6,374 52,553
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GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2011
HE-F——F+-A=t+-ALTE

2011 2010
= —T—TF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5T AR TR AREFT
Cash flows from RETH2HERE
operating activities
Profit before income tax FT 15 %5 Bl 4 ) 26,998 25,289
Adjustments for: HEE
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEME - BE K
and equipment B2 B 9 1 —
Amortisation for land use rights b (5 P R B 9 754 754
Depreciation of property, plant ME - BERRBITE
and equipment 9 431 280
Bank interest income HITH B UA 8 (764) (358)
Operating profit before LEBEESEHAIZ
working capital changes A g A 27,420 25,965
Increase in account receivables, JE YRR SR 0
net of deferred income HREZER A (12,037) (8,525)
Decrease in prepayments ERNFBERENIZS R
and deposits paid 89 19,304
(Increase)/Decrease in BERIRI TR
pledged bank deposits (&g, mL (3,079) 2,074
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR SR 1T FRAE N (7,300) —
Increase in accruals and JEETE R &AM ER
other payables FRIELE AN 32 10,600 739
Net cash generated from operations A& &K EL ZIRE F5 15,693 39,557
Interest received 2R B 764 358
Income tax paid BEFREH (4,846) (810)
Net cash generated from RETBHELEZRSTE
operating activities 11,611 39,105
Cash flows from investing activities REZFE2RERE
Purchases of property, plant BEVE - BEREE
and equipment (19,081) (25,735)
Deposits paid for acquisition of WM« BERE&EEZ
property, plant and equipment BEff%E (798) (17,782)
Refund of deposits paid WEMEZEMNZERED
for acquisition of properties - 39,900
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - HE K&
plant and equipment HABFTIS IR 197 —
Net cash used in investing activities REZBFACEEEH (19,682) (3,617)
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—R——FEH
2011 2010
—¥——F —EFF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR® T AREFTT
Cash flows from financing activities BEEFE2HERE
Decrease in amounts due to JFE A5 IR BB SRR DR
shareholders (17,763) (21,784)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEZBFFACEEEHE (17,763) (21,784)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HeRFESEEEBEZ
and cash equivalents (R2) /EinEEE (25,834) 13,704
Effect of foreign exchange IEEREH CHETHE
rate changes, net 4,975 2,696
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HBHZBEK
at 1 January H&%EER 24,627 8,227
Cash and cash equivalents R+=ZHA=+—Hx=2
at 31 December HERBEEEEHE 3,768 24,627
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Assurance Finance Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 10 March 2011. The registered office of
the Company is the office of Codan Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited, Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares
have been listed on the Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 6 January 2012.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in note 16 to the financial statements. The Company
and its subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”
hereafter. In the opinion of the Directors, the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Capital Gain Investments Holdings
Limited (“Capital Gain”), a limited liability company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”).

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011
were approved by the board of directors for issue on 21 March
2012.

THE RESTRUCTURING EXERCISE AND BASIS
OF PRESENTATION

Pursuant to a group restructuring exercise (the “Restructuring
Exercise”) carried out by the Group to rationalise the structure
of the Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company became
the holding company of the subsidiaries comprising the Group.
This was accomplished by the following steps:

(a) Incorporation of Hero Praise Limited (“Hero Praise”)

()  Hero Praise was incorporated in the BVI on 21
January 2011 and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Team King Limited (“Team King”).
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2. THE RESTRUCTURING EXERCISE AND BASIS
OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

(a) Incorporation of Hero Praise Limited (“Hero Praise”) (Continued)

(i

On 8 July 2011, Team King, through Hero Praise,
acquired the entire issued share capital of Aurora
Logistics Capital Assurance Limited (“Aurora Capital
Assurance”) from Aurora Logistics Finance (Hong
Kong) Limited (“Aurora Logistics Finance”), in
consideration of which, Team King allotted and
issued 9,400 new shares and 600 new shares,
credited as fully paid, to Capital Gain and Best
Access Holdings Group Limited (“Best Access”)
respectively. Prior to this transaction, Aurora
Logistics Finance was 94% and 6% owned by
Capital Gain and Best Access respectively.

(b) Incorporation of the Company

(0

(i

(ii)

On 10 March 2011, the Company was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and one nil-paid ordinary
share of the Company was issued and allotted to
the subscriber which was subsequently transferred
to Mr. Pang Man Kin Nixon (“Mr. Pang”).

On 1 December 2011, Mr. Pang transferred the nil-
paid ordinary share of the Company to Team King.

On 2 December 2011, the Company acquired the
entire issued share capital of Hero Praise from Team
King, in consideration of which the Company allotted
and issued 8,871 fully paid up new ordinary shares
to Team King and 1,128 fully paid up new ordinary
shares to Joyful Promote Limited (“Joyful Promote”)
(who was owned by a non-controlling shareholder
of Capital Gain) and credited as fully paid at par the
allotted one nil-paid share held by Team King. After
the share allotment, the Company was owned as to
88.72% by Team King and as to 11.28% by Joyful
Promote.
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THE RESTRUCTURING EXERCISE AND BASIS
OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

(b) Incorporation of the Company (Continued)

(iv)  On 5 January 2012, pursuant to the increase of the
authorised share capital of the Company from
HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000 by the creation of
additional 4,962,000,000 shares, the Company
allotted and issued 1,233,190,256 new ordinary
shares to Team King and 156,789,744 new ordinary
shares to Joyful Promote. An amount of
HK$13,899,800 (then standing to the credit of the
share premium account of the Company) be
capitalised and applied in full at par value of a total
of 1,389,980,000 shares for allotment and issue to
the above shareholders (“Capitalisation Issue”).

(v)  On 5 January 2012, at the direction of Team King,
Capital Gain, Best Access, Mr. Pang, Mr. Chang Hoi
Nam (“Mr. Chang”) and Dr. Ma Chung Wo Cameron
(“Dr. Ma”), the Company allotted and issued 8,872
new ordinary shares to Team King and 1,128 new
ordinary shares to Joyful Promote, with an aggregate
par value of HK$100, in full satisfaction of a loan in
an aggregate sum of approximately RMB108.3
million due from the Company to them (“Loan
Capitalisation Issue”).

Subsequent to the Restructuring Exercise, on 5 January 2012,
the Company issued 150,000,000 new shares and allotted
235,000,000 sales shares (being offered for sale by Team King
and Joyful Promote), to public under placing (“Placing”) at
HK$0.28 per share, and the Company’s shares were listed on
the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 6 January 2012. The total
number of issued shares of the Company after the Placing was
1,540,000,000 shares.
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THE RESTRUCTURING EXERCISE AND BASIS
OF PRESENTATION (Continued)

The Group resulting from the Restructuring Exercise is regarded
as a continuing entity as it involved combinations of entities
under common control, which were controlled directly or
indirectly by Mr. Pang, Mr. Chang and Dr. Ma (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) under a contractual arrangement immediately
before and after the Restructuring Exercise. The Company and
Hero Praise are regarded as a continuation of Aurora Capital
Assurance and its interests in the subsidiaries now comprising
the Group resulting from the Restructuring Exercise since all of
the companies which took part in the Restructuring Exercise
were controlled by the Controlling Shareholders before and
immediately after the Restructuring Exercise. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared by adopting the merger basis of accounting. Under
this method, the Company is treated as the holding company
of its subsidiaries throughout the financial years presented
rather than from the date of acquisition of the subsidiaries. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared as if the Company has always been the holding
company of the Group. The results of the Group therefore
included the results of the Company and its subsidiaries with
effect from 1 January 2010 or since their respective dates of
incorporation/establishment, where it is a shorter period. In the
opinion of the directors, the consolidated financial statements
prepared on the above basis present more fairly the results,
cash flows and financial position of the Group as a whole.

Since the Company was incorporated on 10 March 2011, there
were no comparatives provided on the Company’s statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2010.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
following new standards, amendments and interpretations
(“new HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), which are relevant to and
effective for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2011:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010

Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of Rights Issues

HK(IFRIC)
— Interpretation 19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures

Other than as noted below, the adoption of these new HKFRSs
had no material impact on how the results and financial
positions for the current and prior periods have been prepared
and presented.

HKAS 24 (Revised) — Related Party
Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) amends the definition of related party and
clarifies its meaning. This may result in changes to those parties
who are identified as being related parties of the reporting entity.
The adoption of HKAS 24 (Revised) has no impact on the
Group’s reported profit or loss, total comprehensive income or
equity for any period presented. The new accounting policy
has been applied retrospectively according to the transaction
provision in HKAS 24 (Revised). HKAS 24 (Revised) also
introduces simplified disclosure requirement applicable to
related party transactions where the Group and the counterparty
are under common control, joint control or significant influence
of a government, government agency or similar body. These
new disclosures are not relevant to the Group because the
Group is not a government related entity.

The following new/revised standards, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of financial statements
— Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income?®
Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time adoption of HKFRSs
— Severe hyperinflation
and removal of fixed dates

for first-time adopters'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers
of financial assets’

Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting
financial assets
and financial liabilities*

Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets?®

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments®

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements*
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements*

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities*
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement*

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee benefit*

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate financial statements*

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in associates

and joint ventures*

HK(IFRIC)
— Interpretation 20

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial instruments
— Presentation — Offsetting
financial assets and
financial liabilities®
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ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new or amended HKFRSs that are expected to
have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is provided
below. Certain other new or amended HKFRSs have been
issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group'’s financial statements.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified into financial
assets measured at fair value or at amortised cost depending
on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assets. Fair value gains or losses will be recognised in profit or
loss except for those non-trade equity investments, which the
entity will have a choice to recognise the gains and losses in
other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward the
recognition and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities that are
designated at fair value through profit or loss, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in credit risk of
that liability is recognised in other comprehensive income unless
that would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In
addition, HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39 for
de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities.
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3. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(Continued)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
(Amendment)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 improve the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial assets and
allow users of financial statements to better understand the
possible effects of any risks that may remain with the entity on
transferred assets. The amendments also require additional
disclosures if a disproportionate amount of transfer transactions
are undertaken around the end of a reporting period.

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs, which collective terms
include all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and applicable Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

62

(b) Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost convention. The significant
accounting policies that have been used in the preparation
of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB56,041,000 (2010:
RMB58,312,000), and had total capital commitments of
approximately RMB35,621,000 (2010: RMB51,404,000),
of which substantial part thereof will be payable in 2012.
In light of the financial resources available to the Group,
including internally generated funds, net proceeds of
approximately RMB21.0 million received as a result of the
listing on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (note 2) and
the capitalisation of amount due to shareholders of
approximately RMB108,300,000 (note 23), the directors
of the Company consider that the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to finance its working capital
requirements for the next twelve months from the reporting
date and accordingly, have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis
notwithstanding the net current liabilities position of the
Group.
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4. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(b) Basis of measurement continueq)

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as a
going concern, adjustments would have to be made in
the consolidated financial statements to write down the
carrying amounts of assets to their recoverable amounts
and to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets to current assets.
The effect of these potential adjustments has not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 6.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
Dollar (‘HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the functional
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the principal subsidiaries of the Group operate. All values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000") unless
otherwise stated.
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64

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

5.1 Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit
or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year (if any) are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made to
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESHHREME &)

POLICIES (Continued)

5.1 Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries 51 8 EERKE QT

(Continued)

Except for those acquisitions which qualify as common
control combination, which are accounted for using
merger accounting, acquisition of subsidiaries or
businesses is accounted for using acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group,
as the acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit
or loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-
transaction basis, to measure the non-controlling interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5.
POLICIES (Continued)

5.1 Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from
new information obtained within the measurement period
(@ maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s interest
and non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i)
the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESHHREME &)

POLICIES (Continued)

5.1 Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries 51 8 EERKE QT

(Continued)

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests in the subsidiary is the amount of
those interests at initial recognition plus such non-
controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes in
equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such
non-controlling interests even if this results in those non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company is able
to exercise control. Control is achieved where the
Company, directly or indirectly, has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that are presently exercisable are
taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

68

POLICIES (Continued)

5.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
as the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
(*CGU’s”) value-in-use and its fair value less costs to sell,
and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the year
in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to profit or loss in the year in which it arises.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESHHREME &)

POLICIES (Continued)

5.3 Property, plant and equipment 53 ¥ - MEKRE

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction-
in-progress ("CIP”), are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated on straight-line method to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment,
other than CIP, to its estimated residual value over its
estimated useful life, as follows:

Furniture, fixtures
and office equipment
Leasehold improvements

3 to 5 years

3 to 5 years or over
the lease term whichever
is the shorter
Motor vehicles 5 years
The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting period.

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is de-recognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

5.3 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

CIP which mainly represents property, plant and
equipment under construction is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct and indirect costs incurred during
the periods of construction, installation and testing. When
the assets concerned are completed and ready for use,
the costs are reclassified to the appropriate category of

property, plant and equipment.

5.4 Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific
asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a
payment or a series of payments. Such a determination
is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement

takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on straight-line method over the
lease terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
from the leased assets. Lease incentives received are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the

aggregate net lease payments made.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESHHREME &)

POLICIES (Continued)

5.4 Leases (Continued) 5.4 *HE (&)

Land use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under an
operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on straight-line method over the term of the
lease except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits to be derived
by the Group from use of the land.
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5.5 Share capital 5.5 BR7N
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is LTBRIIDEEER - RAIZRE
determined using the nominal value of shares that have BITRM 2 EEET °
been issued.
Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of capital BIIRAZHBXZERABRA
are deducted from capital (net of any related income tax OB EFERBEBEAEH M) F 10
benefit) to the extend they are incremental costs directly Br - MELARRER S EEEG 215
attributable to the equity transaction. IR BBR o

5.6 Financial assets 56 LELEE

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. Management determines the classification of
its financial assets at initial recognition depending on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired and
where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at the end of reporting period.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only when,
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Regular way of purchases of financial
assets are recognised on trade date.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

5.6 Financial assets (continueq)

72

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the instruments expire or are
transferred and substantially all of the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. These are initially recognised at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and transaction
cost.

At the end of each reporting period, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective evidence
of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual financial
assets includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor.

5.

FESHTHRBE @

56 TREE ©)

BREBRER S RE 2 BN Em
SN IEA N EL 4B K # 0 L B £ (O]
HEEER - ©REETUAIUR
R -

ERN YRR R ER B E KA
HEMNR » RERTISHERE
ZHMTEEREE - WEFKRY
FARFEMEEREERHK
AHER - RIRABBRNRITER
B A CRERDREEE) 5
B o B AAIRE AR 2 ZAIR
RInBrtE - BRERERMNX
MR HMA—EB D 2B °

REBEHR > eMEESTHU
At BERGBRE 2 EB

ErRleRMEEEBREEREER
RRAEBERAY R —HEHA L
THIBBREF 2 AT REUER

— BEBANBLEARMBREE

— ERAEHN MRESERX
M EBHARE K

— EBAREGARERENET
Hif%Ed &

— it T REIOERR
15 3R AT BEEHE RS AERCT
MEEzEREL -



FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESHHREME &)

POLICIES (Continued)

5.6 Financial assets (continued) 56 TREE ©)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the group of financial assets. Such observable data
includes but not limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
financial assets has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in which the
impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed.
The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss
of the period in which the reversal occurs.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

5.7 Financial liabhilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include accruals and other

payables and amounts due to shareholders.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All interest related charges are recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy for

borrowing costs.

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition
of a new liability, and the difference in the respective

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

All the Group’s financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value, net of directly attributable transaction
costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using effective interest method.

5.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short term highly
liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESHHREME &)

POLICIES (Continued)

5.9 Provisions and contingent liahilities 59 BERIAEE

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of reporting period
and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events not
wholly within the control of the Group, are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote.
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POLICIES (Continued)

5.10Accounting for income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities relating to
the current or prior reporting period, that are unpaid at
the end of reporting period. These are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the end of reporting period
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,
tax losses available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
difference, will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwiill or from initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither
taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESHHREME &)

POLICIES (Continued)

5.10 Accounting for income tax continveq) 510 R BB S5 @

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period the liability is
settled or the asset realised, provided they are enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity if they relate to items that are charged or
credited to other comprehensive income or directly to
equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented
in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

()  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.
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POLICIES (Continued)

5.11Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from financial guarantee (as the case may
be, including consultancy services related to
issuance of financial guarantee) is recognised over
the contract period on a time apportionment basis;

(b) income from performance guarantee (as the case
may be, including consultancy services related to
issuance of performance guarantee) is recognised
and determined using the percentage of completion
method. The percentage of completion is calculated
by comparing the good supplied or services
rendered by the Group’s customers to total

contracted amount with third parties;

(¢) income from standalone advisory services is
recognised when the services are rendered, and

(d) interest income is calculated on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

5.12Employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans. The Group operates a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”),
for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a

percentage of the employees’ basic salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) are required
to participate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of employees’

salaries to the central pension scheme.

78

5.

FESHBEHRE @)

511 INZHTERR

H&/\EEAKEITEET EREK
N g K AR TsEqu#Hﬂﬁ
TE&EEE@M\EE :

(@ BMERRABRARTE
MGE - BEHER RS E
RAB Bz BRERS) & A
I EE ) B R & H HA R 7

=
ey

(b) BHERKAGETFELM
T PREEARHBOERE
s BERERG) LEKE D
AR RERE o BB
DT EERE T AEE
BPzERMRBEREE=
FZBEENRERETE

(c) REBILEERERE WAL
RERGRHER + K&

@) FERAKAERNEEE
HTFﬁtt1 J_-r_+|: ?r °

512 E EEF

BB 2 RN ThiE 8RR
FFEIRM - REBERAGMR
E£u+§ﬂf|¢f§|J§§i—IEE§ET BN
RIKEAETE ([RE2EE) -
HEREEKRBHERESEZ
B8 - HEZEBELRF 22X
BOLES -

REERPEARELMEA ([
B &EHMBARIETREZSR
/,\Eﬁﬁfﬂi’mﬁmﬂzﬁﬁﬁzqﬂ
RRKEEE - BEAKBARZA
Tﬁ1§i$ﬁé%¥§nttﬂ$9&ﬁ
KEETEIHR -



5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

5.12Employee benefits continuea)

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as employees render services during the year. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited to the
fixed percentage contributions payable.

5.13Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition, construction
or production of any qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare
the asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset when expenditure for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended
use or sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended
use or sale are complete.

5.14 Foreign currencies

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The functional
currency of the Company is HK$. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB since most of
the companies comprising the Group are operating in
RMB environment and the functional currency of most of
the companies comprising the Group is RMB.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

5.14Foreign currencies (continued)

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into RMB at
the closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into RMB at the exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange rates
do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
exchange reserve in equity.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

5.15Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(il

(i

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

0

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other
entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group
or an entity related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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5.15 Related parties (continued)

82

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

5.16 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

A financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with
the Group’s accounting policy on “Provisions and
contingent liabilities”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with the Group’s
policy on “Revenue Recognition”.
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5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 5. TESHHREME &)

POLICIES (Continued)

5.16 Financial guarantee contracts continueq) 516 MEEREN @

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. Where the contracted fee is received or
receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, it is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
contracted fee is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of the corresponding liability.

The contracted fee of the financial guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised and
recognised as revenue in profit or loss over the term of
the guarantee as income from financial guarantee issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised if and when it
becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee and the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.

5.17Performance guarantee contracts

The Group issues performance guarantee contracts in
which the Group agrees to provide guarantees to its
customers who entered into contracts with third parties
for services to be rendered or goods to be supplied within
an agreed time period. These performance guarantee
contracts issued by the Group are classified as insurance
contracts under HKFRS 4 “Insurance Contracts” as under
the contracts the Group has accepted significant
insurance risk from the counterparties by agreeing to
compensate the counterparties if a specified uncertain
future event adversely affects the counterparties. These
performance guarantee contracts are in general of short
duration of less than one year.

MAEEZEHMEER  BRZ
BHERAVTHERBEZEWA -
WEEHNERE KB BEITE
R 5 BREK - AIRBEAEEE
RARZEERR 2 BRHESTHE
R MEBBEZESNEREI
[k FE U - BNE: B S iG R ¥ 25 i
RAEBETHRBEAER -

NHHERRBRIERA Z BB R
BHNERDRBEEFRMENE
m AETTERSE R ER A - 1F
RELBERRZAGEA - 1t
S - A AT REBE R EIRIT B AR
REERERAEEXNERAR
HAKE 2 RIBERBFEBHR
BREE BV R 2B E
KAt (ER)) - BE R
T ﬁ& o °

517 BHERE LD

AEBBITROERAA - Bt
AEERZE/EREFPILN BTN
%W%?%ﬁZ%%ﬁfEZf
mBE=ZNRIEZAK - RHE
R e Wmié%'$%lELh
W E B R E T HEE 2 R REF1E
RIS T AR &R - BE T
ﬁﬁ BEXBEHZERNRER,
R EARBERIT ZBAE
1%%&%:ﬁﬂ%&%£EJ4%
[REAHIDBEBREBEH - %
FRNERAN KBRS &
WEHPTBE—F -

83



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Notes to the Financial Statements

B E e

5. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

84

POLICIES (Continued)

5.17Performance guarantee contracts

(Continued)

Where the Group issues a performance guarantee, the
contracted fee of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income. The contracted fee of the performance
guarantee initially recognised as deferred income is
recognised as revenue in profit or loss based on
percentage of the guaranteed performance delivered over
the period of risk according to the relevant performance
guarantee issued. The proportion of contracted fees
deferred represents the Group’s recognised insurance
liability.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether its
recognised insurance liability is adequate with reference
to the estimated net contractual obligations under all
outstanding performance guarantee contracts. The
contractual obligation is estimated using the current
estimate of all contractual future cash flows under the
outstanding insurance contracts and of related cash flows
with available information. When the assessment shows
that the carrying amount of deferred income as the
Group’s recognised insurance liability is inadequate, the
entire amount of shortfall is recognised to increase the
Group’s insurance liability and charged to profit or loss of
the year when the shortfall is identified.

5.18 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information reported
to the executive directors are determined following the
Group’s major operations.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”
are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
to be affected in the future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group’s provision policy for doubtful debts is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and ageing
analysis of the outstanding receivables and on
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer and the related
parties. If the financial conditions of the customers and
other debtors of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional impairment may be required.

(ii) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the CGU to
which the asset is allocated. Estimating the value-in-use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the CGU and also to choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows. A change in the estimated future
cash flows and/or the discount rate applied will result in
an adjustment to the estimated impairment provision
previously made.
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AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(iii) Estimated useful lives of property, plant

and equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors,
such as expected usage of the asset, expected physical
wear and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset,
and legal or similar limits on the use of the asset. The
estimation of the useful life of the asset is made based on
the experience of the Group with similar assets that are
used in a similar way. Depreciation charge is revised if the
estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from the previous estimation.
Estimated useful lives are reviewed, at the end of each
reporting period, based on changes in circumstances.

(iv) Estimation of provision for financial

guarantee and performance guarantee
issued

The Group’s management reviews the creditworthiness
of its customers and re-assesses the fair value of
collaterals of individual customers for financial guarantee
and performance guarantee issued by the Group from
time to time. The best evidence of fair value of collaterals
is current prices in an active market for similar collaterals
in the same location and condition. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its
judgement, the Group’s management considers
information from a variety of source including public
accessible sources, such as internet searches, recent
transaction prices, statistics on recent market
development and market quote. If the Group’s
management consider the financial conditions of the
Group’s customers deteriorate or the customers would
default in payment or contracts, provisions will be made
and the amount is based on the exposure which is the
maximum guarantee amounts.
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6. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 6. TESTHERMST @
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

(v) Stage of completion of performance (v) BREREHNZER

guarantee contracts

Revenue from performance guarantee contracts is
recognised according to the percentage of completion of
individual performance guarantee contract. The
percentage of completion is calculated by comparing the
good supplied or service rendered by the Group’s
customers to total contracted amount with third parties.
In order to ensure that the percentage of completion of
performance guarantee contracts is accurate and up-to-
date, management frequently reviews and estimates the
progress of the goods supplied or service rendered by
the Group’s customers.

(vi) Stage of completion of standalone

advisory services

Revenue from standalone advisory services is recognised
according to the percentage of completion of advisory
services. Revenue recognition on an uncompleted
advisory service is dependent on estimating the total work
to be performed of the advisory contract, as well as the
work done to date. In order to ensure that the percentage
of completion of advisory services is accurate and up-to-
date, management frequently reviews and estimates the
progress of the advisory services rendered based on their
past experience and the nature of the advisory service
provided by the Group.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may earn
revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of
the internal management reporting information that is provided
to and regularly reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in
order to allocate resources and assess performance of the
segment. Executive directors have determined that the Group
has only one single business component/reportable segment
as the Group is only engaged in the provision of financial
guarantee service, performance guarantee service and advisory
services which is the basis to allocate resources and assess
performance. The Group’s revenue from external customers is
divided into three groups of products which are disclosed in
note 8.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal place of the Group’s operation is in the PRC. For the
purpose of segment information disclosures under HKFRS 8,
the Group regarded the PRC as its country of domicile. All the
Group’s revenue and non-current assets are principally
attributable to the PRC, being the single geographical region.

The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services are provided. Total revenue from external
customers is mainly sourced from the PRC.

The Group’s customer base is diversified and includes only the
following customers with whom transactions have exceeded
10% of the Group’s revenue. During the year ended
31 December 2011, revenue derived from these customers is
as follows:

TEER

REDBERAEE R ARESE
ERzEmEXAS AN D  MITE
FEEHETEREHNAMESDBER
DERKRRFEZAMEEZHREH
REWMBEELLEDE - ARAEE
ERFREBEERRS - BOER
BR7S KRB BRTE - W ALIEA D BEE
BREFHERR 2 ER - HATESRR
RAREES —EAKENE - AKE
REINBEF 2 W m=EE mAd
Bl - HOPH ISR EE

ARRRTREERAR > MAREZ
TEREWHUNTE - BBV
WEERFESH D AER 2 HTE - LI
BEMOME  PERESAEE 2
EER - FIAANKEZKERIFRD
BEEHIZXRETE  RE-RE -

Bzt Ig e AR 7 2 s
EoBEPZWGEBRBEIERAT
o

AEBECHAM  BRENTRS
BB EERREI0%ZEF « BE=
T —F1-A=t+—BLEFE K
ARSES 2 MSIT

2011 2010

—¥——F —EFF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREFT

Customer A EFPA n/a FiE A 4,927

Customer B XFB n/a 7 & A 4,711

Customer C EPFC - 4,800

“n/a”: transactions during the year did not exceed 10% of the Group’s [TEA] © FRETZRXSWEBBAREE
revenue. Wtk 210% ©

“—”: no transaction between the Group and such customer during the [—] : REBFANEHEZEPETR

year.
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REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Revenue from the Group’s principal activities, which is also the
Group’s turnover, represents the income from provision of
guarantee and advisory services. Revenue and other income
recognised during the year ended 31 December 2011 are as
follows:
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HAEBEEZXBME 2 W - T80
REBEBZEETE  BEREREREE
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YA

2011 2010
—®-—-% -T-T%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR ARBETTT

Revenue g %5
Income from financial guarantee B & FER WA 7,788 7,523
Income from performance B AR IEA
guarantee 32,520 25,400
Income from standalone B R RS UL A
advisory services 4,800 —
45,108 32,923
Other income E AU A
Bank interest income RITH B UL A 764 358
Interest income from BN EW R TE
loans and receivables Z F B U A - 256
764 614
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. FREHARR
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging: FrEHanaFMRINBRATIEBERS
H o
2011 2010
—E2——F —ET-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Auditors’ remuneration Z AN EN & 747 21
Depreciation of property, M WERE&BTE
plant and equipment 431 280
Amortisation for land use rights b {5 F # % £ 754 754
Employee benefit expenses EERMNAX
(including directors’ (BIEESHE (H:E10)
remuneration (note 10))
Salaries and wages HFehkIE 2,569 1,507
Pension scheme contributions iRk & 52t 3%
— Defined contribution plans — E R RGTE 277 197
2,846 1,704
Foreign exchange loss, net HNESTE H 18 F 5R 38 490
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  MEAREBZEE
plant and equipment 1 —
Operating lease charges in MERB o KEHEER
respect of properties 1,148 1,138




TEHBREMEEFTRAR

—E——55H
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 10 EEME R BB RS HMH
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES AT
(a) Directors’ remuneration () ESME
The remuneration of each of the directors for the year HE_T——F+=—A=+—H
ended 31 December 2011 is set out below: HEFEXZEST 2 FH 7 M
T
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e 28 Bk
re REWAZ HELEER &t

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARETxR

Year ended 31 December 2011 HZE_ZE——£
+-A=+-ALFE
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Pang TRE - 489 7 496
Mr. Chang RA4E - 549 7 556
Mr. Chen Xiao Li BR/NF S A - 25 - 25
- 1,063 14 1,077
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Chang Xi Min REHLAE 8 - - 8
Independent BUFHTEE:
non-executive directors:
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung ~ #JkE &4 8 - - 8
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki FEERELE 8 - - 8
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BRis Lt 8 - - 8
24 - - 24
Total A 32 1,063 14 1,109
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HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued)

10. EEME R T B H S HEN

The remuneration of each of the directors for the year
ended 31 December 2010 is set out below:

AL @)
(@ EEM<E @

BE-T-TFT-A=t-8

LEERRESEZHME R M

T
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees inkind  contributions Total
e R EYNG
we LKEDFE BERT A A
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT ARETRH
Year ended 31 December 2010  HE-ZT—TF
+-R=t—HItFE
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Pang ZRE - 160 — 160
Mr. Chang REE - 240 - 240
Mr. Chen Xiao Li B/ NFI L - 80 - 80
- 480 — 480
Non-executive directors: FHTEE
Mr. Chang Xi Min REHEE - - - —
Independent BUFHTEE:
non-executive directors:
Mr. Lam Raymond Shiu Cheung ~ #kE %4 - - - -
Mr. Chow Shiu Ki BERELE - - - —
Mr. Chan Kai Wing BREESRLAE - - - -
Total A&t - 480 - 480




10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
two directors for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: two) whose emoluments are reflected in note 10(a).

The analysis of the emolument of the remaining three
highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December
2011 (2010: three) whose remuneration fell within the band
of Nil to HK$1,000,000, are set out below:

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

10. EEME R T B H S HEN
AL @)

(b) EEBRESHMAL

HEZZT——F+=-A=+—H
IHFE  AEEBREAZSHHA
THBERE-FEE(CE—F
—%)  EM&ERKFE10@)F
fRmk o

HE-_ZTZ—+-A=+—8H
EFE RE#BK =R (ZZT—F
F . ZR)BRTMALT (ESE
B = %=1,000,00087T) 2
DT

2011 2010
—g——F —T-T5&
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETTT

Salaries, allowances e R LEDNZ
and benefits in kind

653 610

During the year ended 31 December 2011, no director or
any of the highest paid individuals waived or agreed to
waive any emoluments. No emoluments were paid by the
Group to the directors or any of the highest paid individuals
of the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

HE-T——F+-_A=+—H
HFE  BEESREaTHE
BNEXREHETAME - &
5 B 3 & (7)) E B s & = 5 B
AT S EAREMASKR
MAREBER 288 - SEARE
2 BEME -

M. TBFHAxX

2011 2010
—g——& —T-=27
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Current tax — PRC
— Enterprise Income Tax

BIHEIR IR — B
— EMER(TREMREHR])

(‘EIT") 9,256 6,527

— Withholding income tax — TSN 950 —
Deferred tax (note 24) EERIE (HI5E24)

— Withholding income tax — BHMEH (750) 750

9,456 7,277
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

94

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of
the Group are domiciled and operate.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong

Kong during the year (2010: Nil).

EIT arising from the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2011
was calculated at 25% of the estimated assessable profits

during the year (2010: 25%).

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, corporate withholding income
tax is levied on the foreign investor for the dividends distributed
out of the profits generated by the foreign investment
enterprises. The Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate

is 5%.

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
before income tax at the statutory tax rate to the income tax

1. IBFHEAxX @

AEEARBEREERELHRNA
SERERREENMEEMEEERE
I8 350 2 )it B F S 3% -

AAFEEARN  AEETEELRNE
B ERERTWA - B EEFE
MERBE(CE—ZTF &) -

RBEE-_F——F+-A=+—HLt
FE RABELEZLEMRSHIIE
BEEANTEAERTRUA 2 25%:18E (=
T—FF 1 25%) °

REBEFBECERMAERE - HINERE
ERFIMRECRIMELE 25 M0 K
ZERBIEHERBHIMEH - A&E
B ZBINPA B R B5%

BAEM KT E 2 BA BT AN
ZHBHAXBRERN R E 2

expense at the effective tax rate is as follows: PR RO ¢
2011 2010
—E——F —ZT-ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Profit before income tax PR 45 75 Al A 26,998 25,289
Tax at EIT rate BEEMEHE 2B 6,750 6,322
Effect of non-deductible expenses N A 15 X 2 72 & 2,506 306
Tax effect of prior year’s FAPH L —FE
unrecognised tax losses RAERTEEB 2 MBETE
utilised during the year - (101)
Withholding tax on dividend B A R UCER AR B 2 B0 AR 18
received by a subsidiary 950 —
Reversal of withholding tax on B [BI R 2 R & F 2 FEI I
undistributed earnings (750) —
Deferred tax on undistributed FEMTEARRD IR
earnings of PRC subsidiaries BNz BT IR - 750
Income tax expense Frig®if 9,456 7,277




12.

13.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or declared by the Company during the
year (2010: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB16,174,000 (2010: RMB17,112,000), and on the
1,390,000,000 (2010:1,390,000,000) ordinary shares issued
(being the number of shares of the Company immediately prior
to the listing of the Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange) as if these shares had been issued since 1 January
2010. No diluted earnings per share are presented as the Group
had no potential ordinary shares in issue for the year (2010:
Nil).

12.

13.

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

iR =

REER - NQFIWES AT IR
BE(ZZE—ZF . &\) -

BRER

BRERBRMNZFAETERARQ R
BAEE R ARA16,174,0007T
(ZZE—ZF : AR®17,112,000
JT) * AR B #171,390,000,0000% & &
i (== —Z4F : 1,390,000,0004%) (BN
EEARBBROREZAMAIZER LT
AIARARIRD 28 8) - LSRN
BE-E—TF—F—ABHEHL -
REEN AEEBTEBTELLE
B8 - A \25|8REFEHN (=2
—ZF &\ -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

96

14. 9% - BERRZHE — &

GROUP 55
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles improvements Cip Total
Bt £E HEME
RBAERE AE £ HREIR Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT AREFTT ARETR
Cost: RA
At 1 January 2010 R-E-EF—-F—H 89 605 134 50 878
Additions NE 23 426 528 24,758 25,735
At 31 December 2010 AT —TF
and 1 January 2011 +TZR=+—8k
—E——%—-f—H 112 1,031 662 24,808 26,613
Additions NE 87 451 — 18,543 19,081
Disposals e - 279) — — (279)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%
+ZRA=1+—H 199 1,203 662 43,351 45,415
Accumulated 2EHE
depreciation:
At 1 January 2010 R-E-TF—-F—H 10 24 8 - 42
Charged for the year ~ AFEE kR 32 145 103 - 280
At 31 December 2010 —E-EF
and 1 January 2011 ‘I‘ A=T—Hk
i 42 169 111 - 322
Charged for the year ~ AFEE R 45 165 221 - 431
Write back on disposals & F il # - (81) - - (81)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%
+-A=+—H 87 253 332 - 672
Net carrying amount: BEEFE :
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——%
+ZA=1+—H8 112 950 330 43,351 44,743
At 31 December 2010 WM -ZT—T4F
+ZRA=1+—H 70 862 551 24,808 26,291




15. LAND USE RIGHTS — GROUP

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

15. + i (E A — A EE

2011 2010
—E2——F —ZE-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

At 1 January ®—AR—H 36,789 37,543
Amortisation B (754) (754)
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 36,035 36,789

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s land use rights in the PRC

were held under medium term leases.

16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

N-ZEBE——F+-_A=+—0 " K&
BBz b Ay AR BRI 49
A -

16. E@Mﬁ%ﬁﬂ*&ﬁ“ﬁ — KN

2011
—E——F
RMB’000
AR¥ T

Investments in subsidiaries LI NGIE S =
— Unlisted shares, at cost — JEETRRG - WA 51,110
Amount due to a subsidiary FEAT BT B A B 3B 5,258

Amount due to a subsidiary was unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

ENHBRRFRAREER 28K
REREE -
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16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

98

(Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011 are as

A (&)

16. RIIB AR ER — A2

RZF——F+ZA=+—BHER

follows: Al FFIBN
Place of Particulars of
incorporation/ issued and fully Effective
establishment paid up interest Principal
and kind of share capital/ held by the activities and
legal entity registered capital Company place of operation
MRS EBITR
Company name i B BERE AATFER FEEER
NCIEE EEERZER EMEAZFHE RFE2EZ EEHH
Interests held directly
EEGERER
Hero Praise Incorporated 1 ordinary share 100% Investment holding
in the BV, of US$1 in Hong Kong
limited liability
company
RE NEBR XS 1REEIETZ 100% KREER - BB
EER DAV Eimk
BREERAA
Interests held indirectly
BEEEER
Aurora Capital Assurance  Incorporated in 200 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding
Hong Kong, of HK$1 in Hong Kong
limited liability
company
JBE B E R REBTMKL - 200k EE1EITZ  100% REER - BB
BREERAA AR
Hebei Da Sheng Guaranty Incorporated in US$13,800,000 95% Provision of financial
Company Limited the PRC, guarantee service,
(“Hebei Da Sheng”) a sino-foreign performance
joint venture guarantee service
and advisory
service in the PRC
AL KRBT AR R B SRR ST ETT 95% kf%ﬂ?ﬁ%ﬁ
BRAA] RINE B 13,800,0007T - BREARRTS
(DAdbRE%]) LA K B AR 755
i
Da Sheng (Xiamen) Incorporated in RMB110,000,000 97.55% Provision of financial
Guaranty Company the PRC, guarantee service,
Limited a sino-foreign performance
(“Xiamen Da Sheng”) joint venture guarantee service
and advisory
service in the PRC
ANBEIT(EF)ER NGNS i D VA AR 97.55% hﬁ BhIEIR AR5
BRAA] RINE BB E 110,000,0007C BOERBRS
(T=PIREE]) LA R BB S AR 75
[
The financial statements of the subsidiaries for the year ended MBRAREBE—_E—F+=A=+

31 December 2011 have been examined by BDO Limited for
the purpose of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

—BUEFEZMBHRREEHEAL
ERERETMEGMERIBKE

IHEREARE 2 REPERE -



TERREHREREGRAT
—E——FFR

17. DEPOSITS PAID — GROUP 17. Bt #&RE€ — X &EE

2011 2010
—2— -5 —z-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Deposits paid for acquisition B ESZ N 2L e (FED)
of properties (note) 27,018 27,018
Deposit for leasehold MEREZES
improvements 798 —
27,816 27,018
Note: MIEE -

In 2006, the Group entered into an agreement with Ja 4t 3 52 25 5 i 2 B
AR AR (“HTEIR”), to purchase a property in Hebei for a consideration
of approximately RMB63,000,000. #T& 2= is a related party to the
Company in which ¥75 25’s shareholder is one of the Company’s directors.
Up to 1 January 2010, the Group made deposits of approximately
RMB49,136,000 to ¥ ¥ 2z. Subsequently, on 10 January 2010, the
agreement was unconditionally revoked and #7558 refunded an amount
of approximately RMB39,900,000 to the Group. The remaining balance
of approximately RMB9,236,000 would be regarded as the deposits for
other properties to be acquired by the Group from #7535,

On 22 September 2010, the Group entered into another two agreements
with #7388 to acquire two properties for considerations of RMB25,260,000
and RMB3,518,000 respectively. According to the agreement, the
properties will be transferred to the Group upon full settlement of the
considerations. In addition to the above prepaid amount of RMB9,236,000
placed with #7138 35, the Group made deposits of approximately
RMB17,782,000 to #38 ak in 2010 and the remaining balance of
approximately RMB1,760,000 has been included in the Group’s capital
commitment (note 27(b)) as at 31 December 2011 (2010: RMB1,760,000).

RNZTERF - ARSI R B ER
BERAR ([FRE]) A % - BE
HIEYE  REXNAAREE3,000,0007T °
RGARARZHEER EREARQRE
B2 HEZT-TF—A—H F£EE
MR e S 4 A R#49,136,0007TiE S ©
ZZE-EF—-RB+H% BB EEGEE
R D 2 A IE A A KR #39,900,000 T B 7
£B - FITHEHBLOARY,236,000EIER
AEBRAFREBEEMMEZLRS -

R-Z—ZTEAA-+-8  REBEFRD
AIESHMGOBE  D2AUNARE
25,260,0007T & A B2 #3,518,0007T U B 7R 18
M - BIEZH®  ZEVESR2EZ AR
BrERTAEE - Bk LR E 2 BANFIE
AR #9,236,0007T (40 £ X frih) oh » —F—
EFAEBNATREIIAHARE
17,782,000t 2 % & » MEI T EHOARY
1,760,000 2t ARERR T ——F+=
R=+—B&ERAE (Hixo7() (ZE—F
F . AR¥1,760,0007T) °
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18. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES — GROUP 18. EWERR — X&EH

The Group’s account receivables represent the service fee
income receivables.

For service fee income, the customers are obliged to settle the
amounts according to the terms set out in relevant contracts,
with a grace period of up to 180 days. The balance as at
reporting date are interest-free and due from a group of
diversified customers and hence there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. At 31 December 2011, no
allowances for bad and doubtful debts were provided as there
was no recent history of significant default in respect of these
customers (2010: Nil).

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of
account receivables which are expected to be recovered within
one year are not materially different from their carrying amounts
because these balances have short maturity periods on their
inception.

Based on the agreed payment terms as stipulated in the
contracts, ageing analysis of the Group’s account receivables
as of 31 December 2011 is as follows:

R 2 JE WK 8 AR TS B WA R
WK -

ERBEBRARAME @ BEAKRIE
BEYNZERENTE  EREES
#1808 - AEBENIEBH &R
RERKRE—BEZTIEER  UWES
AEFEERR RZTE——F+=
A=+—H  BR&ZEEP I &I
BREALE  BERRERFELHRE
HCCE—TF 8| o

ARREZBRBENZFEHRREH
WEE - RN —FAKEZ R AR
R FEEAFRAEZFALEEX
EHo

RIEADIMTHZBENRIER > &
KER-F——F+-A=t-AZ
AR 2 BB AFIT

2011 2010

82— —z—=f

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFRT  ARBTT

0 to 30 days 0&E30H 10,348 790
31 to 90 days 31E290H 7,904 1,722
91 to 180 days 91£2180H 4,450 3,506
Over 180 days Hi#®180H 102 3,536
22,804 9,554




18. ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continueq)

Ageing analysis of the Group’s account receivables that were
not impaired is as follows:

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

18. EWERR — XE£E »)

NEBRRFE 2 EWBERER 2 RER DT
mr

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Neither past due nor impaired K HE R RBE 10,300 790
1 to 90 days past due A EI1 £ 90H 7,952 1,722
91 to 180 days past due #HI91E180H 4,450 3,506
Over 180 days past due w AR B180H 102 3,536
22,804 9,554

Account receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to customers that have good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are considered fully recoverable.

B8 BB RBE 2 FE W iRk 7k L % 4 B
AEBAERUTFEGERBZIETFRPE
o RBBELR  ARNEREERT
BELBAREY  BESRBE/EH
2RNE MEEFRRELEUZF
REERE DB E R -
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18.

19.

102

ACCOUNT RECEIVABLES — GROUP (continueq)

The Group holds collaterals over certain account receivables.
In the event of default or failure to repay any outstanding
guarantee amounts by the customers, the Group will proceed
with sale of collaterals. In order to maintain the credit risk at
desirable level, the Group’s average loan-to-value ratio was kept
below 50% to ensure the recoverability of the outstanding
guarantee amount (2010: below 50%). At the reporting date,
the fair value of the pledged assets in respect of account
receivables is as follows:

18.

EWERR —AEE @)

AEEGRE TRKERFAR MM -
MEPEQIREEERTMAENE
RE - AEERIHERAR - KR
BEREERRKY  AEEZVHE
A A E L R @R RB50% A T LATE SR
AENEFRBEZTREE(ZE-F
F1B0%AT) - RIERH - BRAME
WIERZEEREEZ R FENT !

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARBEFT

Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1% - = MR E 8,013 23,352
Inventories BE 240,819 126,359
Account receivables JrE W BR 3K — 204
Intangible assets mEEE — 55,000
Bank deposits (note) RITF R (HIEE) 900 —
249,732 204,915

Certain assets have also been pledged to the Group to secure
the Group’s exposure under outstanding financial guarantee
contracts as at the reporting date (note 30).

Note:

The balance has been deposited to the Group’s PRC bank accounts
as collaterals.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS — GROUP

These pledged bank deposits have maturity of one year as at
31 December 2011 (2010: one year). Such deposits have been
pledged to certain banks as securities for providing financial
guarantee services to the customers. The effective interest rates
of the Group’s pledged bank deposits as at 31 December 2011
were 0.5% to 3.5% (2010: 0.8% to 2.75%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2011, all pledged deposits were
denominated in RMB (2010: RMB1,021,000 was denominated
in HKS). RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies and
the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

19.

ETEENCERTAEE - UK
SERNBEARZARENRERLERS
HTRHIER (FHFE30) -

B

m

BHRCFRRARBEZRBERITRAPERS
iR e

DERRITER— %S

WN_ZE——F+_-_A=+—H%SE
BRRTERZIBEEEAE—F (=2
—TF I —F)  c REFHREEBTE
FiR1T - EAMZFIRHERE EBRR
BZRE - R_E—F+=-A=+
—H AEEERERRITERZER
MEEFFOLSEEILSE(ZZET—F
FI08EE2.75E) °

R_E——F+-_R=+—B " A
EERGEARAARESHEBEB(CE-F
F: AR®1,021,0007T A T ET
B) - ARETAAHERAEME
¥ BTEELZFESEITERK
& e 2 SMEFR Il P AR R o



20. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS — GROUP

21.

22.

These bank deposits are kept in the PRC bank accounts of the
Group as collaterals of financial guarantees (note 30) and related
account receivables (note 18). As these bank deposits are
restricted to a specific use by the Group, they are not under
the cash management of the Group.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP

20.

21,

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

ZREBRTER —AKH

ZERTHERIIEFRRAEE R HE
ZIRITERPIE R BB Y2 IR 2 540 an (Y
AE30) b #H Bl FE MR R AR (MY RE18) - R
& FRITIEFRIIR BIEA S B EH
BB TBAREZREER -

BERBREEEER -&
%

Cash in hand and bank balances F# R & MIRTT4E

2011 2010
—§-—-% ~T-T%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE  ARMTR
3,768 24,627

Included in the balances of approximately RMB4,000 as at 31
December 2011 (2010: RMB1,229,000) was denominated in
HKS$. All other balances were denominated in RMB and were
kept in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject
to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on the
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND
DEFERRED INCOME — GROUP

22, EEtE A

RZE——F+_A=+—Hit A&
BRH AR ¥ 4,000 Ty A TTRHE (=
T—ZTF . AR¥1,220,0007T) ° AT
BEMEBTIAAREEE - WRH
B{RTF - AR A EHEBRAHA
B AR RELZEESAXHE
BT B e 2 SNERR HI FT AR R o

RITIF R B TR B A R
2T HRIKER o RTFREFA
I B 4 0 PR AR A 8 2 £ PR R AT 8B
7 o

» EA B 7R
RIELWA - FEE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARETF T
Accruals and other payables JEET B R kA AN FKIB 11,314 104
Dividend payable to FERTBT B A TR = 2 IR B
non-controlling interests
of a subsidiary 1,000 —
Deposits received Bz - 300
Deferred income from KB I BHERZELERA
financial guarantee 3,253 2,040
Business and other tax payables &1 i Z i & E b § 18 1,290 1,600
16,857 4,044
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23.

24.

104

AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS — GROUP

The balances were unsecured and interest free. As the
shareholders intended to capitalise the outstanding balance in
full before the listing, the balance was classified as a current
liability as at 31 December 2011. The balance was fully
capitalised on 5 January 2012.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES — GROUP

Deferred tax liabilities were recognised at 5% withholding tax
rate on the undistributed retained earnings of the PRC

23.

24,

FET R IE — A EE

ZERBRBERHERRE - ARIRE
T%ﬁBAimH BRBEHREEERE ©

i, - BRI EAER T —F+
—_HA :—1-—5//@))?@% o RRFEBN
TE——F—ARBAEHTFUERL -

FER A E - A EE

FRKEHRESE (ZE—FF .
5E) (Na}ﬁ)ﬁﬁwzﬁwﬂlﬁﬁ%

subsidiaries (2010: 5%) (note 11) and their movements during AIZARDIRRB RN ZELEHIEAE
the year are as follows: REBIMT
2011 2010
—F——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB 000
AR TR AREFT
At 1 January R—H— 750 —
Charged to profit or loss INGEAE=Engii]Z3
during the year 200 750
Credited to profit or loss REAREmTA
during the year (950) —
Total deferred tax BEEFIBBENFRNER
(credited)/charged to profit (GTA) Bk
or loss during the year (750) 750
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H - 750

As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the PRC’s subsidiaries’
undistributed retained earnings of which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised are approximately RMB895,000
(2010: RMB800,000). No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group
is in a position to control the dividend policies of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.

N-_E——F+_A=+—0  #Erh
BB AR RS IRBINRHEBMAR
BREEHBEAGZRFEREZREY
B ARS95,000L (ZE—ZFF © A
K #800,0007T) ° H AN & B Al 4%
ZEWNBRARIZIREEREK  BZE=E
BIAERARRKER WERZSE
ERERELESIBEAE -



TERREHEERRAR

—R——FEH
25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. iR 7
Number
of shares Amount
i 4= &5
Notes HK$’'000
B 7 FTAT
Authorised: ETE
Upon incorporation N IRV (a) 38,000,000 380
At 31 December 2011, - ——4F
ordinary shares of +—A=+—8"
HK$0.01 each 1% & @A 0.015 T 38,000,000 380
Issued and fully paid: ERTRBEEE
Upon incorporation P FE K 32 (b) 1 —
Issue of shares pursuant to RIEBEHEENEITIRMD
the Restructuring Exercise (c) 9,999 —
At 31 December 2011, ordinary R-ZT——4F
shares of HK$0.01 each +—-—A=+—H
BlERR0.01E T 10,000 —

The issued and fully paid share capital of the Company is
equivalent to approximately RMB82 as at 31 December 2011.

Notes:

(@) The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 10 March
2011. At the date of incorporation, its authorised share capital was
HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each.

(b)  On 10 March 2011, 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01, was allotted and
issued nil-paid.

() On 2 December 2011, the Company allotted and issued 9,999
shares of HK$0.01 each credited as fully paid and credited as fully
paid at par the allotted 1 nil-paid share pursuant to the Restructuring
Exercise (note 2(b)(iii)).

R-TE——F+-_A=+—H &R
AR BTRBRRANARKS2TT

PEsE

@ ARERE-——F=ZA+BERASH
BRI - AR R - BOAE
5 A £380,000/# 7T, + 2 £3388,000,000
P @R - = A0.01/8 T

b) R-ZT——F=ZF+H  —RE{EO0.01
BTz R L @A B R R
1T e

(0 WM-ZE——=F+-A-R0 BESZMAZ
&) (M sE2(0) (i) + AN A B8 R B AT
9,990 B A%0.017% 7T 2 B {5 (B BR1ELR
) M EEE — R AR AR R 2 B (B BR1E
BmRE) -
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26. RESERVES — GROUP AND COMPANY 26, HE—AEBERAAQT

(a) Group (@) &~&H

Details of movements on the Group’s reserve are as set REBRBEHFBHRGEE
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. mEEEK o
(b) Company (b) &2 F]
Contributed Accumulated
surplus losses Total
(note)
BEHERSR ZitEE &t
(Bf¥ &)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBEFTT AR¥EFT AREFT
At 10 March 2011 N_E——F=A+H
(Date of incorporation) (FEfRCSZ B ER) — - —
Issue of shares pursuant to RIEE A /SN EE1T D
Restructuring Exercise (Ft3E2)
(note 2)
— Transactions —HEH ANETT
with owners X5 51,110 — 51,110
Loss for the period and HEEELEAE2E
total comprehensive WA 4B %
income for the period — (8,054) (8,054)
51,110 (8,054) 43,056
Note: Bt -
Contributed surplus of the Company represented the difference RARZBEBAEBRTEMBERBA
between the net asset values of the subsidiaries acquired and Rl EEFELREEHEEES D BT
the nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in AARIEAZEEZ FZER -

exchange thereof pursuant to the Restructuring Exercise.
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TERREHEERRAR

ST EFH
27. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY 21. A — A EB R A QT
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) BEHEAE
Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable N_E——F+ZH=1+—H ' Ri&
operating lease of the Group in respect of buildings with EREEE T (YsE28(@) MBI E=FH 2
related parties (note 28(a)) and independent third parties TAHEHE EHEREF 2 ARKE
as at 31 December 2011 are as follows: EAELSOT
Group
rEH
2011 2010
—E2——F —TET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Within one year —F2ZA 1,015 678
Within two to five years “ERF 682 42

1,697 720
The Group leases certain properties under operating AEBREBELKEHERRAETY
leases. The leases run for an initial period of one to three X -MEVFZRH—Z=%F 7
years, with options to renew the lease terms at the expiry RIERN R A B iR A S B B AR
dates or at days as mutually agreed between the Group ¥TEMRBEAHEME - &
and the respective landlords. None of these leases HEBRBEMKAES -

includes any contingent rentals.

The Company did not have any operating lease RZZE—F+=ZA=+—H"
commitments as at 31 December 2011. RN E W EAT A S THEAEIE o
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27. COMMITMENT — GROUP AND COMPANY 27. RIE—-XEB KA DT

(Continued) (&)
(b) Capital commitments (b) EAREIE
The Group had the following capital commitments as at RZZE—F+=ZA=+—H"
31 December 2011: REEBUTEARFE !
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Contracted, but not BETA - BREE
provided for:
Land and buildings TH RAETF
— related parties — B3 n (WHsE17)
(note 17) 1,760 1,760
Leasehold improvement & ¥ & & 2,495 —
CIP fEEITiz 31,366 49,644
35,621 51,404

The Company did not have any commitments as at 31
December 2011.

R-ZF——F+-_A=+—8"
AN A AT AR AHE o
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28. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)

(b)

Balances and transactions

Other than the related party balances and transactions

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

2. BAEHINE

()

BHREXS

BRINRE M ER T INE 2 8

disclosed in elsewhere to the consolidated financial FEBRR SN REBRFA
statements, the Group had the following material BUTERBERIRS !
transactions with related parties during the year:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETF T
License fee paid to EfNEEL TR
a related party 567 760
Rental expenses paid to ENEERFES
related parties 137 161

The Group entered into one to three years lease in respect
of certain leasehold properties from related parties. With
reference to the terms negotiated between the related
parties, the Group paid license fee and rental expenses
for office premises to Ms. Ma Lee Kwan, mother of
Mr. Chang, and certain related companies, of which the
Company’s shareholders are also the major shareholders
of these related companies.

Compensation of key management
personnel

The emoluments of directors who are also identified as
members of key management of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in note 10(a).

(b)

AEEREELETHEYMER
V—BZF2HE - K2RAR
BHERZ G AEERBL
EMEAFTHELL REEZE
) METRERR SRR
REERX » ARBZBRRBZ%
FHERRZEEZRR °

BETEIEEEAER

EERATEEXEZEEABY
RE)REZE-_ZT—F+=-A=
+—HIEFE 2T ARM
10(a) °

109



China Assurance Finance Group Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2011

Notes to the Financial Statements

B E e

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

110

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

29. €T B (RER)

W-E——%+-A=+—8 %8
AeMIA BEEMT -

Group Company
xE ¥ NN
2011 2010 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
—E——F —E-FF —E——F
AR® TR ARBEFT AR® T
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables Bk MR R
Account receivables JiE U BR 3R 22,804 9,554 —
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITHER 43,300 40,221 =
Restricted bank deposits SRR HIRITFE K 7,300 — -
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFMEEE 3,768 24,627 -
77,172 74,402 -
Financial liabilities SR
At amortised costs R SRR
Accruals and EAERK
other payables o AN e 11,314 104 3,540
Dividend payable to FEFT I B A B FE 1 %
non-controlling w2 BRE
interest of a subsidiary 1,000 — -
Amounts due to JE A~ IR SR SR IE
shareholders 108,300 126,063 —
Amount due to a subsidiary JETB B A R FRIAE - — 5,258
120,614 126,167 8,798




30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise account
and other receivables, pledged bank deposits, restricted bank
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, accruals and other
payables and amounts due to shareholders. These financial
instruments mainly arise from its operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
approximated to their fair values as at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in
time and are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments.

These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgement, and
therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. As the Group’s exposure to these risks is kept to a minimum
level, the Group has not used any derivatives and other
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The board of the directors of the Company reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair value
or future cash flows of financial instruments which arise from
changes in interest rates. Floating interest rate instruments will
result in the Group facing the risk of changes in market interest
rate.

The Group’s interest rate risk primarily relates to the interest
bearing bank balances and pledged bank deposits. The Group
currently has not used any interest rate swaps to hedge its
exposure to interest rate but may enter into interest rate hedging
instruments in the future to hedge any significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

30. EEMEEHERBER

AEBTESRTABFBRERIERR
KE A EERIE - D ERRITER
SRFRTER RELRSFER
B R ERNMEMENRIE AR
ENARIE - ZFEEMTATIER
BELEER -

REBREHR  AEESRTAZE
EESEKRE 2 FERE - 2FER
BIORFEREAREZSERMIAZ
HEMSEREL -

FEMFHF 2 MEBIBAE - 8
NARBAREMAFLHERHE 2 F
B ABEXBEET - BRRBERZ
HE) R R M AT BT EREARE -

BRASESRTIAZ TZ2RAR AT
KRk - SNERR - FEERRERE
BxRR - BRANKEY L ER 2
AEDRE RE - AR B EIAME
MOTETAREMTAEHPRAE -
AEETERFAERBTITEESRT
HIFEERZ - EFgRMLRAEE
BEAERRZBE - EBIMT -

) 2= 2 By

FERRESBTAATERFRS
SHERFLEHTRB AR < F
BRE LA ERAEEARTTS
FEBHER -

REEN KRR EEA BRITAR
REERRITEREH - AEBRE
A 45 ) 2K 45 B DA S ) B 2 B R R
@ ERE R AR KR ERT EE R
EERTEMEERTA -
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30.

112

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

As the Group’s revenue and expenses are mainly in RMB and
most of the Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, which is the functional currency of the Group’s major
operating entities, the currency risk resulting from the Group’s
daily operations is considered not significant. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to obtain
financial guarantee from the Group are subject to management
review. The Group has entered into financial guarantee
contracts in which it has guaranteed the bank the repayment
of loan by customers of the Group. The Group has the obligation
to compensate the bank for the loss it would suffer because
the customers fail to repay. The Group’s maximum exposure
under the financial guarantee contracts is disclosed in “liquidity
risk” below. To mitigate such risk, the Group requests its
customers to provide collaterals as appropriate. In the event of
default or failure to repay any outstanding guarantee amounts
by the customers, the Group will proceed with the sale of
collaterals. In order to maintain the credit risk at desirable level,
the Group’s average loan-to-value ratio was kept below 50%
to ensure the recoverability of the outstanding guarantee
amount. As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s exposures under

30. EEMEEHERBER

(4)
S L B

HRAEEZWamlAXETER/AR
%o MABOASEEERAEBHIN
ARBZ2I(HAREBTEKEER
ZIMEEER) AEERABRRBEL
ZHMER BRI NE KR o AEEIBREIA
EIMNELINEK o A - BEEEER
SN ERR - YERFEERE B
HREAINERERR o

FERR

REBZBRERFABRBAERE
SRMEERZEFPHESHEREES
B AEEDITTRERRELD &
AEERERFRRITEE ZKE
ELER AEEBERERF KR
BERBZHERERTEIZELX -
REBREERENEBE T Z&ARAR
BERTXRBESRR] - BRIE
ZRK  AEBEREFPRHEEAZ
o B FBAIKREEETM
REMEREE - NEB K HES KT
Mo AEREEEERBKTE A&
B2 FHEFREEL RERFN50%
AT - AEERAREMNERREZ Tl E
MeRZTE——F+=-_A=+—8 "
REBRIHAREEREVBATA MU

unexpired financial guarantee contracts were secured by the TZEEREEEER
pledged assets of the customers as follows:

2011 2010
—E2——F —ZT-ZTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Property, plant and equipment  #1% - E M & & 185,183 64,712
Inventories AT 325,966 192,249
Account receivables JE U BR 3R 48,200 6,807
Bank deposits (note) RITE K (FEE) 7,300 —
566,649 263,768




30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (continuea)

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. The Group
holds collaterals to cover its risks associated with account
receivables. The account receivables arising from the financial
guarantee contracts as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were
secured by certain assets of the customers. The fair value of
the pledged assets, which are also pledged to secure the
Group’s exposure under unexpired financial guarantee contracts
as mentioned above, as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 is as
follows:

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

30. EEMEEHERBER

(1)
EERR @

ERERERIHEER  MAEE
ZEERRBRITAEKN - AEEFHIK
oA EEREKERZER - B
—TE——FRZFE-ZEFF+A=T
—H BMERREHELERIIRZUA
BREZETEEEERR RZT——
ER-_E-TE+-A=+—H B
BREE (ARRIASE R HRERE
RE D 2 BB IREIER (A0 _E3CFrt) )
ZRAFEMT

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARETFT

Property, plant and equipment  ¥1% - = MR E 8,013 23,352
Inventories FE 125,986 124,570
Account receivables JE YLBR 5K - 204
Bank deposits (note) RITF R (HIEE) 900 —
134,899 148,126

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which mainly
comprise of pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents, arises from potential default of the counter-party,
with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. Credit risk in pledged bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents is mitigated as cash is deposited in
the banks of high credit rating.

Note:

The balance has been deposited to the Group’s PRC bank accounts
as collaterals.

AEEEMERTAE(Z2RFECER
RITERERE MRS FEER) ZE
ERRIREMYE T AEEN BN
HERERHAEFNZELAZER
B - RREDHFERREEEFR IR
7 BERROTERMREREESSE
EHAB 2 EERARA MBI

B

m

LEREFARKERBERTERS - R
HHm -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Management of the Group monitors current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that the Group maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in

the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at 31
December 2011 and 2010, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, are as follows:

(%)

Ko

30. EEMEEHERBER

AEEEEBERAARBAMRSE
B BRAREEFTERESH
W ARNERMEHRADESE

TREGLAEEIREA OARRKA
ZERMEER T —FR-F-F

FH-A=+t—HBZHHBR :

Group
S|
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Within Repayable on
amount cash flow 1 year demand
ERAER
BHE BReREfE R-FR REREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARB®TT ARETR
2011 —E--F%
Other payables and accruals HEtEAFERETER 11,314 11,314 11,314 =
Dividend payable to non-controlling EN—HRBAT
interest of a subsidiary R R R E 1,000 1,000 1,000 =
Amounts due to shareholders FER R B A 108,300 108,300 108,300 -
120,614 120,614 120,614 -
Financial guarantees issued ERTRERR
Maximum amount guaranteed EERKARE 205,300 205,300 - 205,300
2010 “E-FF
Other payables and accruals HittENFIERESFER 104 104 104 -
Amounts due to shareholders FER IR R 08 126,063 126,063 - 126,063
126,167 126,167 104 126,063
Financial guarantees issued DRITAMERER
Maximum amount guaranteed EERKARE 114,200 114,200 - 114,200
Company
PN
2011 —E--F
Other payables and accruals HttENFEREFER 3,540 3,540 3,540 -

114



30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debts divided by total equity. Net debts include amounts due
to shareholders less pledged bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s strategy was
to maintain the gearing ratio at a healthy capital level in order
to support its businesses. The principal strategies adopted by
the Group include, without limitation, reviewing future cash flow
requirements and the ability to meet debt repayment schedules
when they fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available
banking facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing
plans, if necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable
level of capital to support its business.

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

30. EEMEEHERBER

(4)
BXRERE

AEBEAERZTEARRRER
SEARNRFEREEELELG
Bz BN X AIEEERE
RAZHREE -

A ER AR 2 B RARR A
B 7 LR I TR AN A 3 0 A
A% ARHRAREALE A%
ETRAREEATRREZBE @R
RREBARLBTH - REN - A
MEREAYBE  BERLRRLE
HREE -

REBERBELE BIREFERA
REAR) RERER - AEFHERE
FER R FRIBER B E M IRTT 7 IR
& MREEFEER -

REBREHR > NEBEZREEEF
BEzAGBHE  UAXFEER - K
SEERZ TERBBEBETRNE
BIARKREREBZ KRB RER
28 REFFTARITRE £ A IEK
FRABKEFEIMBEE (1F
2)  NRRAKEHREREKFEZE
REZFFEE -
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Capital management continued)

The gearing ratios as at 31 December 2011 and 2010 were as
follows:

30.

BHEREEERRBER
(4)

BEXEE ©®)

R-B——FR-_F-FTFF+_A=
t—HZARELENT

2011 2010
—g-—-% -—T-T%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETTT

Amounts due to shareholders B IR R F TR 108,300 126,063
Less: Pledged bank deposits & : B EHIEITFER (43,300) (40,221)
Cash and cash RekH+EEEE
equivalents (3,768) (24,627)
Net debts BEFHE 61,232 61,215
Total equity T T AR R 52,553 31,036
Gearing ratio BELE 1.17:1 1.97:1

31. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Group issues performance guarantee contracts for which
the Group agrees to provide guarantees to its customers who
enter into contracts with third parties for services to be rendered
or goods to be supplied within an agreed time period. The
Group has the obligation to compensate the third parties for
their losses arising from the defaults in contracts by the Group’s
customers. As at 31 December 2011, there was no outstanding
balance of unexpired performance guarantee contracts as
performance guarantee contracts were all completed (2010:
Nil).
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AEEBOEREGD > BHAKRER
EREFTFPHRNGE BN/ T REHE
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31. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

The Group’s exposure of account receivables of performance
guarantee contracts was secured by assets of the customers.
The fair value of these pledged assets as at each reporting
date is as follows:

FERREMEEERL T
—E——reg

N.BHEREN ®

AE B EAOERS O R BERFATE
HZRAKR  HEPZEEFEN &
FREREENERSBEHZATE
LN

2011 2010

—E——F —E-EF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T ARETF T

Intangible assets | EE - 55,000
Inventories FE 114,833 1,789
114,833 56,789

The risk under any performance guarantee contracts is the
possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of
the amount of the resulting claim. The nature of the business
underwritten by the Group is generally of one year or less in
duration; however it is still subject to some unpredictability.
The key risks that the Group faces are timing and severity of
claims relative to expectations.

The risk for performance guarantee contracts is dependent
upon the occurrence of uncertain future events, in particular,
the extent of service not rendered or products not supplied by
the customers and the value of the contractual obligation that
may arise from its customers’ failure to perform services or
supply goods to the counterparties.

TEOERS QBT 2 ERSER
EMFHBEZAREN  AERASER
TR EEMN - NEBMARZE
BHE—RAM—FPR—F &
AT AR TRRIMER B o A& B Ay
E¥zT2EMERBEHEB 2 RE
R M B E L -

BHOERAKN ZEBRIURN RKELE
ZTHEEEMN  BREEPAREREM
RIBHREMR » ARREFF KRB
TRHERGRERMEEZANEE
TR e
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31.

118

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

(Continued)

It is the Group’s objective to deal only with credit worthy
customers. Its policy for accepting guarantee services is based
on its risk assessment of customers and their collaterals. The
Group has taken measures to identify risks and manage such
risks at every stage along the guarantee approval process and
the post-transaction monitoring process. The Group conducts
thorough due diligence with a strict credit approval process for
the approval of performance guarantee. The Group’s due
diligence team evaluates the proposed pledged assets through
on-site visits and by taking into account of liquidity, prospects,
market outlook of the pledged assets (if applicable) and general
economic factors which may impact the value of the pledged
assets. In arriving at a valuation, the due diligence team
considers the historical experience with similar collateral, current
market prices, industry trends, government data and other
relevant sources. The Group also reviews the creditworthiness
of its customers from time to time and ensure that sufficient
collaterals are obtained to cover potential losses. The Group
established a post-transaction monitoring process implemented
by the Group’s experienced monitoring team to conduct regular
inspections and valuations on the collaterals provided by
customers and customers’ creditworthiness on monthly basis.
The Group also conducts spontaneous inspection of the
operation of its customers. Based on these assessments, the
Group considers whether any insurance liability has to be made.

There is no significant concentration of risk under performance
guarantee contracts as at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

N.BHEREN ®

AEEESREERFZIEFPENTR
5 - EBRETIRBE P 2 BB E &
BFEFREZEMR  RERBEMNE
RERTS © 768 B B SREFS 5 A 28t Bl
& WRERMLERFRZXHRER
BFzeERREEZERAR - K&
BABRZEEHEREFETEEER
BE UHEROER AREZE
BESEKELEEMSE TECE
REEZ R - IR NHHRE (W
R AR e ECEREEEE
ZREBERE  NHEREDERE
EETFE  REFHER  BBE
sEGeEREUERRZBER
i RITHE  TEBE - BNBE
AR E A BB RIR - AEE IR
AEREFPZERMRR  BREESE
MERRARMNBEREE - NEBET
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32.

33.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, Hebei Da Sheng
declared dividend of RMB1.0 million to its non-controlling equity
holder. The dividend was not paid as at 31 December 2011.

NON-COMPLIANT GUARANTEE SERVICES

During the year, there were instances where Hebei Da Sheng
and Xiamen Da Sheng did not comply with the thresholds
prescribed by the interim measures for the administration of
financial guarantee companies i & MR AR BIEEITHE
(“Interim Measures”), that the outstanding guaranteed amount
of a single customer provided by a financial guarantee company
should not exceed 10% of its net asset value (the “10% NAV
Threshold”).

Hebei Da Sheng and a customer entered into four financial
guarantee contracts during the period from April 2010 to March
2011. The aggregate outstanding guaranteed amount for the
first three contracts of this customer was within the 10% NAV
Threshold. When Hebei Da Sheng entered into the fourth
contract in March 2011 with the same customer, the aggregate
outstanding guaranteed amount of such customer became
RMB18.0 million, representing approximately 15.6% of the net
asset value of Hebei Da Sheng as at 28 February 2011 (being
the then latest available net asset value of Hebei Da Sheng as
per its management account prior to the entering of the relevant
contract in March 2011), and therefore exceeded the 10% NAV
Threshold. On 1 April 2011, such customer repaid RMB6.0
million, the outstanding guaranteed amount of such customer
therefore reduced to RMB12.0 million, representing
approximately 10.4% of the then latest available net asset value
of Hebei Da Sheng as of 28 February 2011.

The outstanding guaranteed amount for such customer as at
31 December 2011 was still RMB12.0 million, representing
approximately 10.7% of Hebei Da Sheng’s net asset value of
approximately RMB112.0 million as at 31 December 2011.

32.

33.
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33.

34.

120

NON-COMPLIANT GUARANTEE SERVICES

(Continued)

In addition, Xiamen Da Sheng and a customer entered into
two contracts in December 2010 and January 2011 respectively
with an aggregate outstanding guaranteed amount of RMB36.0
million, which also exceeded the 10% NAV Threshold,
representing approximately 33.2% of the net asset value of
Xiamen Da Sheng as at 30 November 2010 (being the then
latest available net asset value of Xiamen Da Sheng as per its
management account prior to the entering of the two contracts).
In December 2011, such customer repaid RMB18.0 million,
the outstanding guaranteed amount of such customer therefore
reduced to RMB18.0 million. As at 31 December 2011, the
outstanding guaranteed amount for such customer was
RMB18.0 million, representing approximately 15.5% of Xiamen
Da Sheng’s net asset value of approximately RMB116.5 million
as at 31 December 2011.

In the opinion of the directors of the Comany, the
aforementioned transactions would not have adverse impact
to the Group. Team King, Capital Gain, Best Access, Mr. Pang,
Mr. Chang and Dr. Ma have undertaken to indemnify and hold
the Group indemnified from and against all or any losses,
damages, liabilities, costs, expenses and fees as a result of or
consequential upon any penalty imposed on Hebei Da Sheng
and Xiamen Da Sheng as a result of the abovementioned non-
compliant guarantee services.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Company completed the Capitalisation Issue, Loan
Capitalisation Issue and Placing on 5 January 2012. On 6
January 2012, the shares of the Company were listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange, details of which are set out in
note 2.

33.

34.
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AN - BEFIREDRIR T —TF +
ZARZE——F—AE-FFIM]
MDEH  ERBBVBEHAEARKE
36.0B 8T ' AHKBE10%&EEFE
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